
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
 

AGENDA
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING

November 2, 2012 – 9:00 A.M.

  
Agenda Item Action Page Time 

 

Meeting Location: Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum ST SE, Olympia, WA 98504 

Committee Meetings ...............................................................................................  ........................  7:30-8:30 
 
1) ADMINISTRATION .............................................................................................  ....................... 3 ........... 9:00 

a) Call to Order 
b) Welcome and Introductions ........................................................................  ........................    
c) Approve Agenda: Janea Eddy........................................................... Action .................. 1 
d) October 5 Meeting Minutes: Janea Eddy  ........................................ Action .................. 5 
e) October 11 Meeting Minutes: Janea Eddy  ...................................... Action ................. 11 

 
2) COMMITTEE REPORT .......................................................................................  ..................... 15 ........... 9:10 

a) Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein ......................................................  ........................  
b) Communication Committee: Kathryn Gardow ............................................  ...................... 17 
c) Policy Committee: Don Montfort .................................................................  ...................... 21 
d) TA Committee: Steve Stuart .......................................................................  ........................  

 
3) CONTRACTING ..................................................................................................  ..................... 25 ........... 9:40 

a) Public Works Trust Fund 
a. City of Bainbridge ......................................................................... Action ................ 27 

 
4) FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES ..........................................................................  ..................... 29 ........... 9:50 

a) 2014 Public Works Trust Fund Construction Loan List Proposal . Action ................ 31 ..................  
i.Briefing on OFM Meeting: Stan Finkelstein .............................................  ............... Verbal 
ii.Resources Update: Myra Baldini .............................................................  ............... Verbal 
iii.Option A ...................................................................................................  ..................... 35 
iv.Option B ...................................................................................................  ..................... 43 
v.Option C ..................................................................................................  ..................... 49 

b) Energy Water Efficiency Program Recommended List: Steve Dunk 
 ............................................................................................................. Action ................ 55 

c) PWTF Pre-Construction Program Recommended List: Terry Dale .....  
 ............................................................................................................. Action ................ 59 

d)    2012 DWSRF Recommended Loan List Revision: Myra Baldini/Denise Clifford .........          
   ........................................................................................................... Action ................ 61 
 
BREAK ..............................................................................................................  .........................  ......... 10:50 

 
5) POLICY ...............................................................................................................  ..................... 63 ......... 11:05 

a) 2013 Policy Bill: Don Montfort/Dawn Eychaner .................................. Action ................ 65 
 

6) PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT/IMPLEMENTATION UPDATES ..........................  ..................... 87 ......... 12:05 
a) Update on Direct Appropriation Projects: Informational Report ....................  ..................... 89 
 

7) INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS .................................................................  ..................... 91 ......... 12:10 
a) December 4 Board Meeting ..........................................................................  ............... Verbal 

 
LUNCH  ......................................................................................................................................................... 12:20 

  
Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 12:30 p.m.  
 
 



  
 
Agenda Item 
 

 
Action 

 
Page 

 
Time 

 
NEXT MEETING SCHEDULED: December 4, 2012, at 9:00 a.m.– Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE 
Olympia, WA 98504-2525. Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be accessible 
to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days notice to the Public Works Board at (360) 725-3151. 



TAB 1 

Administration 

3



 

4



 

 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING NOTES 
October 5, 2012 

Wenatchee Convention Center (Wenatchee, WA) 

Board Members Present: Board Members Absent: Staff Members: 

Stan Finkelstein - Chair 
Frank Abart 
JC Baldwin 
Jerry Cummins 
Kathryn Gardow 
Ed Hildreth 
Scott Hutsell 
Don Montfort 
Mark “Bubba” Scott 
Darwin Smith 
Steve Stuart 
Larry Waters 
 

Tom Fitzsimmons 
 

Myra Baldini 
Ann Campbell 
Cindy Chavez 
Steve Dunk 
Janea Eddy 
Dawn Eychaner 
Christina Gagnon 
Cecilia Gardener 
Isaac Huang 
John LaRocque 
Matt Ojennus 
 

Guests Present: 
 
• Leonard Bauer, Department of Commerce 
• Scott Boettcher, SBGH Partners 
• Robert Goodwin, Vista Vu Water Association 
• Karen Klocke, Department of Health 
• Bruce Lund, Department of Commerce 

• Chris McCord, Department of Health 
• Scott Merriman, Washington State Association 

of Counties 
• Cathi Read, Department of Commerce 

 

WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS 

a) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 8:09 a.m. 

HIGHLIGHT MEETING MATERIAL 

a) John LaRocque reviewed the Board packet and handout materials, including a memo regarding 
Vista View Water System and a 2014 Public Works Trust Fund (PWTF) Funding List Update. John 
noted that the PWeB presentation from Rodney Orr would be deferred until the November 
2012 Board meeting. 

  

5



 
ADMINISTRATION 

a) Approve Agenda: Scott Hutsell moved to approve the agenda. Ed Hildreth seconded. ACTION:  
Motion Approved (11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, 
Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

b) August 17, 2012 Meeting Minutes: Kathryn Gardow noted that a correction was needed on the 
top of page 7 of the minutes. Kathryn Gardow moved to approve the minutes as corrected. Larry 
Waters seconded.  ACTION:  Motion Approved (9-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, 
Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters). Darwin Smith and Steve Stuart abstained from the 
vote as they were not present at the August 17 meeting. 

c) December Meeting: John LaRocque advised the Board that a meeting is being planned for 
December 4 with the new Governor and their transition team. John noted that CERB, TIB, and 
possibly CRAB are interested in joining the meeting. 

CONTRACTING 

a) Bruce Lund presented a PWTF loan extension request from the City of Bainbridge Island due to 
revised scope of work and extended public comment. Kathryn Gardow moved to approve the 
extension. Jerry Cummins seconded. ACTION:  Motion Approved (11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, 
Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

b) Bruce Lund presented a Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan extension request 
for Firgrove Mutual. Steve Stuart moved to approve the extension. Darwin Smith seconded. 
ACTION:  Motion Approved (11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, 
Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

c) Isaac Huang and Myra Baldini presented a DWSRF loan restructure request from Vista Vu Water 
Association. Isaac reviewed the current issues with the water treatment system. Myra reviewed 
the unanticipated costs the association confronted during construction and the potential impact 
on customer rates if the loan is not restructured. Myra reviewed three options developed by 
staff for the restructure and recommended that the Board adopt option number two. 
Isaac Huang noted that a Vista Vu representative planned to be present at the meeting, but 
would not arrive until 10 a.m. Don Montfort moved to table the Vista Vu loan restructure 
request until the association representative arrived. Steve Stuart seconded. ACTION:  Motion 
Approved (11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, 
Stuart, Waters) 

d) Bruce Lund reviewed the status of currently open Board contracts, noting that construction bids 
are coming in a bit higher than expected because the industry seems to be picking up a bit. Don 
Montfort asked about the status of contracts which were previously not closing out in a timely 
manner. Bruce reported that the Board has recently instituted a 10% retainage policy that 
should help with that issue. 

  

6



 

FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES 

a) PWTF 2014 Bypass of Lakeview Sewer District & Grays Harbor PDA: Cecilia Gardener reviewed 
staff recommendation on page 61 of the Board packet, noting that the two projects 
recommended for bypass were not directly addressed by the Board at the last meeting. John 
LaRocque noted that these applicants had requested the Board formally bypass them rather 
than withdraw themselves from consideration. Kathryn Gardow moved to approve staff 
recommendation. Larry Waters seconded. ACTION:  Motion Approved (11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, 
Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

b) 2014 Growth Management Act (GMA) Impacted Applicants: Cecilia Gardener reviewed the list of 
applicants not eligible for the 2014 PWTF application cycle due to non-conformance with 
Growth Management Requirement that the applicant be in conformance with GMA at the time 
of application. John LaRocque explained that the Governor’s office is reviewing the Board’s 
policy bill and has expressed interest in the Board bringing forward the list of applicants that 
were denied due to GMA.  John explained that this would create a need for the PWB policy bill 
to have retroactive language in it regarding GMA eligibility and that attorneys at the Governor’s 
office are currently working on some draft language. 

Stan Finkelstein asked how the additional $36 million represented here would impact the overall 
loan list request. John noted that staff already have reduced the list significantly by working with 
the local jurisdictions to reduce their loan requests and will continue this work. John explained 
that staff is also working with the Departments of Ecology and Health to blend project financing 
between PWTF and the State Revolving Funds (SRF), and also to move projects completely to 
one or both SRFs.  

Stan Finkelstein asked whether jurisdictions did not apply for this loan list because of GMA non-
conformance and whether this would have an adverse political impact if these particular 
projects are grandfathered in. John responded that we cannot be certain about this. 

Darwin Smith asked if these projects were included, whether the fund would still be solvent. 
John noted yes, noting that by reducing project costs and blending projects the Board will have 
more opportunity to fund a list in 2015. 

Steve Stuart moved to approve staff’s recommendation, Darwin Smith seconded. Steve Stuart 
noted how pleased he is that the Governor’s office is considering this issue and that by involving 
bigger counties in the discussion the issue is getting some attention.  Frank Abart asked for 
confirmation that the Board’s fund can handle the additional projects. John replied that yes, the 
fund will be solvent, but that it could reduce the loan list in 2015. ACTION:  Motion Approved 
(11-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, 
Waters) 

c) EWE Program Pool of Applicants Update: Steve Dunk updated the Board on the Energy/Water 
Efficiency loan applications received. Steve noted the application cycle closed and $5.6 million in 

7



loans was requested. Steve advised the Board that a ranked list will be brought to the Board in 
November for selection/approval.  Steve explained that Tukwila is withdrawing their energy loan 
request for the swimming pool project, so it appears that all 11 projects should be able to be 
funded.  Kathryn Gardow asked if there will be a little leftover then. Steve affirmed about 
$200,000 would be left, which could be awarded for cost overruns. John LaRocque noted that 
staff would like to send out a thank you to the non-Public Works Board (PWB) program staff 
who helped design the program and rate the projects.   

d) Pre-Construction Program Pool of Applicants Update: Chris Gagnon presented the requests 
received for pre-construction funding, totaling $2.085 million. Chris noted that application 
requests do not exhaust the available funding, which is $3 million. John LaRocque noted that the 
pre-construction projects will be selected by the Board in November. John explained that staff 
will be bringing a proposal to the Board in November to use the leftover $1 million to leverage 
approx. $14 m. in federal USDA funds. 
 

BREAK 

CONTRACTING 

a) The Board agreed to reopen discussion on the previously tabled Vista Vu Water Association loan 
restructure request. Robert Goodwin from Vista Vu Water Association addressed the Board and 
answered questions about the current status of the project. A number of Board members 
expressed concerns about the financial health of the utility. Don Montfort moved to approve 
Option 2 as recommended by staff. Larry Waters seconded. ACTION:  Motion Approved (11-0) 
(Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

POLICY 

a) Decision Packages Update: John LaRocque updated the Board on the status of the draft policy 
bill, advising the Board that the bill is in z-draft form and has been endorsed by the Governor’s 
office. Don Montfort noted that the policy committee has some concerns about how the bill 
reads regarding traditional and non-traditional systems and the refinancing language should be 
revisited in order to allow refinancing of federal funds. Don Montfort advised the Board that the 
policy committee would be conducting additional stakeholder meetings to get more input on 
the draft language. 

b) Health/Commerce/PWB Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Direction: John LaRocque 
noted that the MOU between Commerce/Health/PWB needs to be updated and that the update 
has been delayed in the past and it is a high need of the Board to look at reworking the MOU.  
Stan asked if John had a timeframe in mind. John noted that between now and the end of the 
year would be ideal. Stan agreed and advised work in the next 3 months would be ideal. Don M. 
asked for clarification regarding the policy committee’s role in the MOU.  John explained that 
the vision is for the policy committee to write the content of the MOU for the board to explain. 

 

8



PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT/IMPLEMENTATION UDPATES 

a) Ann Campbell reviewed the matrix provided in the Board packet showing the 2014 PWTF 
requests by system and applicant type. Ann noted that this matrix shows the most current and 
solid numbers available, noting that folding in the GMA applicants will change the numbers 
again. Kathryn Gardow asked if, for the next cycle, the Board would need to set some criteria for 
selecting projects for the 2015 list. John LaRocque explained that in November or December 
staff will bring a proposal to the Board for criteria for the next application cycle, which would 
begin in March 2013. John noted that staff will bring the most aggressive and feasible plan 
possible for the next year. 

INFORMATION AND OTHER ITEMS 

a) GMA Decision Package: Leonard Bauer passed out a paper slide presentation for the Board’s 
review.   Leonard advised the board that Commerce has been soliciting input from stakeholder 
regarding how to fund additional staff in the Growth Management Unit of Commerce and is 
requested that the Board support funding from the Public Works Assistance Account (PWAA) for 
GMA staffing and grants.  Leonard noted that Commerce is also pursuing the possibility of 
receiving stormwater funds from the Department of Ecology for this purpose. Jerry Cummins 
moved to approve the request to divert funds from the PWAA for GMA, Kathryn Gardow 
seconded.  Steve Stuart spoke against the motion, noting that previous diversions for 
infrastructure construction make sense with the Board’s mission. Steve Stuart noted that he 
feels it is inappropriate to divert PWAA money to planning. Kathryn Gardow noted that in the 
past the PWB has funded planning activities, although different type of planning, and she spoke 
to the importance of planning.  Don Montfort noted his adamant opposition to this proposal, 
noting past opposition from the board for grants, noting that this is a non-traditional 
expenditure of funding that the board has in the past opposed.  Frank Abart noted his 
opposition to the motion, echoing the sentiment that this is a clear diversion of the fund.  Ed 
Hildreth noted his opposition as well. Larry Waters expressed that it may be helpful for the 
board to help defray some of these costs. Kathryn Gardow left the meeting. 
 
John LaRocque asked what would happen if the money from the PWAA does not come forward. 
Leonard explained the Commerce has already put forward a decision package to the Office of 
Financial Management with a note that Commerce is exploring other options for funding.  Myra 
Baldini noted that if the $3 million is diverted from the fund, the 2015 list would be reduced by 
$12 million. Darwin Smith noted his opposition to the diversion of funds. 
 
J.C. Baldwin asked about how the efforts to secure stormwater funding to support GMA is going. 
Leonard explained that part of the NPDES permit requirements includes an evaluation of low-
impact development. Commerce has talked with Ecology on stormwater capital and noted that 
the legislature has not consistently appropriated money for stormwater projects, and that he is 
cautiously optimistic that agreement could be made. 
 

9



Jerry Cummins withdrew the motion to approve the diversion of funds.   
 
Darwin Smith asked John LaRocque if there would be any impact to the current loan list moving 
forward since the Board has taken a stand on this issue.  John and Leonard agreed that there’s 
no connection and that the Governor’s office has not directed Commerce to explore this issue, 
noting that Commerce approached the Governor’s office to see if they would be open to this 
idea and they were open to the idea, but were not directing it. 
 
Don Montfort moved the Public Works Board oppose the proposal expending PWAA funds on 
GMA planning. Steve Stuart seconded. Steve Stuart stated that the motion is important to 
demonstrate that the Board is taking a stand opposing this type of diversion of the fund, and 
noted that the Washington State Association of Counties and other associations would commit 
to helping secure other funding for GMA. John LaRocque suggested that the Board could 
provide a letter stating their support for funding GMA technical assistance and grants from 
other sources. Don Montfort amended his motion to include the letter. ACTION:  Motion 
Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins,  Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Smith, Stuart, 
Waters) 
 

b) SW Regional Local Government Academy Update: Lynn Kohn updated the Board on the progress 
of planning the SW Regional Academy, noting that Jim Justin, Stank Finkelstein, and Steve Stuart 
have agreed to speak. 

John LaRocque suggested that for the next Board meeting, the committees may want to meet 
from 7 a.m.-9 a.m. before the meeting starts. 

c) iPRMT Presentation: Scott Merriman introduced Scott Boettcher and asked for the Board’s 
assistance in helping promote “iPRMT” or the new name of the same service, to the Board’s 
customers in order to assist with greater transparency and knowledge retention. Scott 
Boettcher presented the “iPRMT” tool and demonstrated its use to the Board. John LaRocque 
suggested that one of the Board’s Technical Assistance staff could specialize in this system to 
train clients in using the tool and that staff will bring a proposal to the Board to suggest this 
option.   

Stan Finkelstein announced that the remaining two informational agenda items could be moved to the 
November Board meeting. Jerry Cummins made a motion to adjourn the meeting, Don Montfort 
seconded. ACTION:  Motion Approved (10-0) (Abart, Baldwin, Cummins, Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, 
Scott, Smith, Stuart, Waters) 

Meeting adjourned at 10:56 a.m. 

10



 

 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD SPECIAL MEETING NOTES 
October 11, 2012 

Department of Commerce (Olympia, WA) 

Board Members Present:  Board Members Absent:  Staff Members: 

Stan Finkelstein ‐ Chair 
JC Baldwin 
Jerry Cummins 
Kathryn Gardow 
Tom Fitzsimmons 
Ed Hildreth 
Scott Hutsell 
Don Montfort 
Mark “Bubba” Scott 
Darwin Smith 
Larry Waters 
 

Frank Abart 
Steve Stuart 
 

Myra Baldini 
Ann Campbell 
Cindy Chavez 
Terry Dale 
Steve Dunk 
Janea Eddy 
Dawn Eychaner 
Christina Gagnon 
Cecilia Gardener 
Isaac Huang 
John LaRocque 
Matt Ojennus 
 

 

Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 3:04 pm. 

Stan Finkelstein gave the background to the OFM directive.    (Attachment 1) 

Ed Hildreth asked if staff was talking about cutting the maximum project limit from $13 million to $6.17 

million. 

John LaRocque answered yes. 

Ed Hildreth asked if the Board would be cutting the CERB funding. 

Stan Finkelstein answered that the Board would cut funding for CERB, Pre‐Con, EWE and Emergency. 

Kathryn Gardow asked if the Board could remove projects based on the construction start date. 

John LaRocque stated that, this method would get the list out to March 2014 and that would cut about 

100 projects off of the list.  Staff is not recommending that, he also believes that the Governor’s Office 

wouldn’t be pleased.  John LaRocque stated the Board was also directed to include the GMA projects 

that were previously excluded due to GMA. 

11



Don Montfort asked what the possibility of moving projects to the Ecology loan list, from the PWB list. 

John LaRocque stated that is a great question.  There is a webinar on Monday, October 15, with Ecology 

and USDA to help promote this.  Ecology asked the top 30 projects on the PWB list if they would be 

interested in applying for Ecology and they were told no thank you.  Health is working with staff to see if 

drinking water can fund up to $35 million off of PWB’s list.  However the Board cannot depend on that 

at this point, if these reductions happen, it will be to late this year, it would be helping next year’s list.   

Kathryn Gardow asked how much money will be available for the 2015 loan cycle. 

John LaRocque answered 2015 would have $0 at this time, working with Myra’s numbers it will go into 

the 2014.  The 2015 amount was eliminated by the OFM directive.  When $1 cash is removed from the 

account the Board loses $4 for loaning capacity.  Staff does have to deliver the Board decision to OFM by 

close of business today. 

Don Montfort asked if the Board could go to the 48 clients who are at the max of $13 million, and tell 

them if they reduce to $6.17million, in 2015 cycle they could come back for the balance. 

John LaRocque answered that it is the Board’s decision if they want they want make the “if” statements, 

“if the Board has money, then these projects would be considered prior to other applicants for funding 

in 2015”. 

Don Montfort asked if the Governor’s office understands what the Board would like and what they are 

going for. 

John LaRocque stated that Stan Finkelstein took a document with him when he met with Stan 

Marshburn, that showed the list and the jobs that it would create and then reduced it incrementally 

down to $350 million and how that would cut jobs and the money leveraged in the state.  They 

understood what the implications are, however they have such a financial hole to fill they are willing to 

make that decision. 

Don Montfort asked to have the document sent out to the Board. 

Kathryn Gardow asked about CERB and how that would affect the relationship with them. 

John LaRocque stated that CERB would understand that PWB had to cut the funding to the applicants 

and other programs to make to the  Board’s funding whole. 

Darwin Smith stated this all seems pretty straight forward, that a decision has to be made to give the 

Governor an answer.  However, the Board still has a lot of questions to be answered. 

John LaRocque answered that in three months the state will have a new Governor, the new Governor 

will work their own budget and they could consider the original PWTF list. 

Darwin Smith stated that he wasn’t happy to lose the other programmatic funding, but the Board has to 

do what is best for the Board and their clients. 

12



Tom Fitzsimmons asked if the Board is required to come up with $105 million, if the amount is reduced 

from $13 million to $6.17 million, how much does that make available. 

John LaRocque stated it would give $105 million for the Governor’s office and $500 million for the loan 

list. 

Tom Fitzsimmons would like a letter of protest sent, that states for $105 million it cost $300+ million 

and x amount of jobs and x amount of leverage of funds in potential projects. 

Don Montfort stated that he supported sub option B, it sends a clearer message to the hill and it gives 

more of chance for projects to be complete. 

Kathryn Gardow moved to approve staff recommendation of one and two with sub‐option A.  JC Baldwin 

seconded.  Don Montfort amended the motion to defer the decision on sub‐option A and B until 

November 2, 2012 Board Meeting.  ACTION: Motion Approved (10‐0) (Baldwin, Cummins, Gardow, 

Hildreth, Hutsell, Montfort, Scott, Waters, Fitzsimmons, Smith). 

Tom Fitzsimmons stated the message to OFM could be that the Board had an emergency meeting, there 

excepting the need to make $105 million available to the Governor’s office; the methodology can be 

decided at the November 2, Board meeting. 

Stan Finkelstein stated that OFM is expecting an answer on 1‐5 of attachment 1. 

John LaRocque stated that is true, OFM wants to see Myra Baldini’s model with the numbers to make 

sure that the $105 million will be in the bank on 6/30/2013.  

Meeting adjourned at 3:51 pm. 

 

 

 

 

13



 

14



TAB 2 

Committee Report 

15



 

16



Public Works Board 

Communications Committee Meeting Agenda 

November 2, 2012 

 

1. Call to Order         

2. Committee Charter - Review/Revise/Adopt (Cindy) 

3. Four Pager Messaging Piece – Review and Refine Draft (Cindy) 

4. Social Media Policy – Review/Revise/Adopt (Rodney) 

5. Web Site Template – Review/Adopt (Rodney) 

6. Update on Business Cards (Cindy) 

7. Items to be brought forward for Board action – Adopt  

8. Adjourn   
 

17



PWB Communications Committee Notes 

October 4, 2012 
1 p.m. – 3 p.m. 

Attendees: 

Board Members 
Kathryn Gardow 
Ed Hildreth 
Scott Hutsell 

Staff 
Rodney Orr 
Matt Ojennus 
Dawn Eychaner 
Cindy Chavez 

Kathryn Gardow reviewed past activities of the communications committee and the creation of the 8-
pager document for use during legislative session.  

Cindy Chavez reviewed how the board’s appropriation (authority) is allocated by the legislature for the 
board to award to projects. 

Rodney Orr reviewed how the older program brochures were distributed at conferences, etc. by client 
service representatives. Rodney discussed application workshops and how information was 
disseminated through conferences. 

 

KEY 

→ Item needs follow-up action 

Name Person responsible for the assignment 

 

→ Possibly include the ALCM info. Into the 8-pager document to explain why the list is so big. Dawn 

KG brought up IPermit as a possible partnership for PWB in order to help local govts. manage their 
projects. They will be presenting to the board tomorrow. 

→ Maybe create a speakers’ bureau of board members who are interested in attending ribbon cuttings, 
events, etc. and promote this option to local governments. 

18



 

Charter 

Ed H. expressed some concerns about the amount of time required for committee members to submit 
their ideas for material content. 

→ Does the committee want staff to bring a timeline for committee work to the next committee 
meeting? Yes.  Dawn 

→ Update charter to reflect work products rather than tasks. Dawn 

Social Media 

Rodney discussed social media options for the committee to consider. Kathryn recommended that the 
board/committee start more slowly with this type of social media. Matt encouraged PWB to be in front 
of the legislature and the public on a regular basis by disseminating information via twitter, etc. 

→ Scott H. suggested a once a week approach to social media to make announcements. Ed H. agreed 
that at a minimum a new posting will be put up once a week.  Staff to determine what the content 
would be.  Also pick a project to feature once a week. Could post PWB meeting notices. Could post when 
staff are visiting a project site or doing a TA visit. STAFF TO PUT TOGETHER A RECOMMENDATION ON 
SOCIAL MEDIA AND BRING BACK TO THE COMMITTEE.  COMMITTEE WILL MAKE A POLICY DECISION 
ABOUT WHAT TO USE, HOW, and WHO WILL BE RESPONSIBLE.  Rodney write up 

→ Matt O. suggested that the joint meeting with CERB/TIB/etc.  would be a good time to rollout the 
board’s social media strategy. 

Marketing Materials 

→ Board member business cards – order generic ones with no names – make logo more visible. Dawn 

→ One pager, make it 11x17 folded, no cover. Put color, bold logo, project totals on front. Make it very 
exciting.  Use a map with project totals instead of the list. Put the state map on the front with the 
project totals per county and have the grand total at the bottom. This will be used for Gov. mtg. and 
legislative meeting. Dawn 

→ Scott/Kathryn = create individual legislator lists to add as an insert as a separate paper for legislators 
we are visiting. Personalize for legislators they are visiting. Dawn 

→ Dawn will email all communications material to the committee. Send out a summary to the 
committee of today’s meeting and to-do’s. Dawn 

 

19



 

Web Site 

Kathryn asked about timeline for the new web site.  Rodney advised the committee that it’s not 
reasonable to expect the new site to be launched by January and that March is a more reasonable 
timeframe. 

Kathryn expressed preference for “Tell me about” and “Show me how” titles that are friendlier and 
more accessible. 

Rodney will bring to the next meeting more details about web site development. 

Webinars 

Rodney suggested that the Board consider whether they want to have webinars available as an option 
that clients, the public, etc. can participate in. Kathryn expressed a preference to test the webinar 
technology on a limited basis with board members/staff prior to making it a public option. 

→ Cindy suggested we try it as a committee meeting first.  Rodney will produce handouts and 
instructions/training for the committee so we can try it. 

Before the next committee meeting: 

Dawn: send electronic version of the 8-pager to the committee and ask for input for topics/content by 
10/15. Prior to next committee meeting, Kathryn asked Scott and Ed to provide input to staff on ideas 
for four –pager no later than Monday, October 15. Kathryn wants to see a draft of the four-pager at the 
next committee meeting.  

 

20



 

 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD  
Policy Committee 

Draft Agenda 
November 2, 2012 – 7:30 am – 8:30 am 

 
1. Review/Revise Agenda 

 
2. Review/Revise PWB Policy Bill  and approve to move to full Board 

a. Key changes to review: 
i.   Ports as an eligible applicant 

ii.   Authority to Refinance 
iii.   Clarification on Traditional and Non-Traditional  

 
3. Review/Revise/Adopt Committee Charter  
4. Public Works Board By-Laws 

a. Start to review/modify the current by-laws.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

21



 

 
Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD  
Policy Committee 

Meeting Notes 
October 4, 2012 -  IACC Conference, Wenatchee Washington 

 
Board Members Present Guests Present Staff Present 

Don Montfort 
Jerry Cummins 
 

Scott Merriman, WSAC 
 

Cecilia Gardener 
Isaac Huang 
Ann Campbell  
 

Action Items from Meeting: 
1. Staff was directed to coordinate a final meeting with stakeholders and partners to review the PWB Policy Bill for 

final input. Intent is to adopt an amended version at November meeting Board meeting.  
2. Staff was directed to draft language to be incorporated into the policy bill regarding refinancing authority, and 

include stakeholders in the discussions. 
3. Edit Charter and bring back to next meeting. 
4. Ann will work with Don to start the process with a Policy Manual 
5. Next Meeting Friday, November 2nd at 7:30 am – 9:00 am.  Board meeting to follow. 

 
1. Review/Revise Agenda 

a. Reviewed and added By-laws to the list in Item 3: possible items to undertake. 
b. Some general elements were agreed to: 

i. Summary notes will be done after each meeting and presented to the full board at meetings. 
ii. Group agreed to invite association representations to committee meetings  

iii. Staff will keep members on track with assignments 
iv. Bring by laws to next committee to start work on.   

 
2. Review/Revise Committee Charter     

a. Section A Primary Functions  
i. 2nd bullet - delete DOH and have just under other. 

b. Section A Primary Functions Key Activities 
i. If a work plan is created, have it be transparent, post on web. 

c. Section B Committee Membership 
i. Eliminate specific names, and use representation as appointed by the board.   

 
3. Review Possible items to undertake      

a. PWB Policy Bill 
i. Staff was directed to coordinate a final meeting with stakeholders and partners to review the PWB Policy 

Bill for final input. Intent is to adopt an amended version at November meeting Board meeting.   
ii. The authority of refinancing was brought to the committee for discussion.  

o  Intent was to try and capture/maximize the use of federal resources. Group agreed that it would be 
a narrow perspective.   

o Authority could be broad in Statute, and clarified in WAC/policy  
o The driver behind the initial prohibition was Legislature wanted to have new projects, not old 

recycled ones.      

22



o Discussion on how this would impact the predictive model. 
o   USDA-RD debt load could be transferred from fed to state, and allow both federal and state dollars 

to rotate faster 
iii. Staff was directed to draft language to be incorporated into the policy bill regarding refinancing authority, 

and include stakeholders in the discussions. 
b. Review/Revise MOU 

i. The Board currently has two outdated MOUs one with the Department of Commerce, and another with 
Department of Commerce and Department of Health.  The MOU with DOH has not been updated since 
1997, and is severely outdated.  Both are supposed to be reviewed and renewed at least biennially. The 
relationship with agency has waxed and waned over time.  The last MOU between the Board and 
Commerce was in 2006 – intended to clarify the most important authority regarding the ex-director.  
Board felt there were too many concessions 

ii. The board has the authority and grants it to the agency. Has been a fairly cooperative process.  The Board 
needs to renegotiate with the Director of the Agency, Rogers Weed. 

iii. It was suggested that we use the current MOU as a base and develop first cut as a working document.  Our 
work will proceed at pace, not driven by circumstance. 

iv. Timing was discussed – option of sending a letter to Rogers requesting a biennial review was ruled out.   
v. DOH is more time sensitive, try to achieve while Mary is still there.  

vi. Use the DOH/Commerce MOU as a model for success, and then undertake the Commerce MOU. 
Incorporate the risk factors associated - shared risk if projects go south  

c. WAC Revisions if policy bill passes – all agreed that they will need to be done 
d. Policy Manual – Ann Campbell enthusiastically volunteered to lead this effort.  Ann and Don will work to 

develop a framework and timeline. 
 

 - End -  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

23



 

24



TAB 3 

Contracting 

25



 

26



 
Date: September 19, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Bruce Lund, CAU Managing Director 
 
Subject: The City of Bainbridge Island request to change the loan term for  

Pre-Construction loan PR08-951-104 – Eagle Harbor Beach Mains Rehabilitation Project formerly 
known as the Point Monroe/Lafayette Sewer LID Project 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends granting the City of Bainbridge Island’s request to convert Pre-Construction loan number 
PR08-951-104 to a 20-year loan term by making one policy exception to the Public Works Board’s (Board)  
Pre-Construction Loan Term Conversion policy: 
 

1. Waive the requirement to request consideration for term conversion prior to the first principal 
payment. 
 

 
POLICY: 
In February 1998 the Public Works Board (Board) adopted a policy allowing pre-construction loan borrowers to 
petition to have their pre-construction loan term converted from five (5) years to twenty (20) years if full 
construction funding for the project is secured prior to the borrower making a first principal payment on the 
loan. 
 
 
REQUEST: 
The City of Bainbridge Island executed a Pre-Construction loan for $425,000 with the Board on          
November 24, 2008. 
 
Currently, the City of Bainbridge Island has $280,000 remaining contract balance to request. 
 
The City of Bainbridge Island has made one payment as of July 1, 2012: 

• July 1, 2012:  $ 72,759.79    ($72,500.00 principal; $259.79 interest) 
 
On April 23, 2012, the legislature approved the Capital Budget for the Public Works Assistance Account Loan 
List, which included this project and secured 100% funding for this project’s construction element. 
 
The City of Bainbridge Island requests an exception to the existing loan term policy and allow for conversion of 
the loan term to twenty (20) years. 
 
Extending the loan term to 20 years will: 

• Reduce principal payments to $22,031.25 for 16 years. 
• Increase the total interest paid to the Public Works Assistance Account  

from $1,555.62 to $14,774.37. 
 
 

 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

November 2, 2012 
Board Meeting 

27



 

28



TAB 4 

Financing Opportunities 

29



 

30



Date: October 24, 2012 
 

To: Public Works Board 
 

From: Ann Campbell, Project, Policy, & Performance Coordinator 
 

Subject: 2014 Construction Loan List Adjustments 
 

Overview: 

Direction: 
The Public Works Board (Board) has been asked by the Office of Financial Management to modify its 2014 
Construction Loan List to enable the application of funds from the Public Works Assistance Account to 
additional state funding priorities.  In addition to this request, the Board was asked to include all applicants 
originally determined to be ineligible for funding due to being non-conformant with the Growth Management Act 
(GMA).  The proposed total amount of funds available for the 2014 Construction Loan List is $500 million.  
Myra Baldini, Fund Manager, is presenting her findings determining this figure in a separate document. 
 
Starting Point: 

1. The Board’s initial 2014 Construction Loan List is $684.6 million for 277 projects from 142 applicants 
(adopted August 17, 2012) 

2. $13 million is the maximum loan amount per applicant (adopted May 2012) 
3. Added 17 projects for $35,087,750 from the Governor’s request to include GMA excluded applicants  

Brings the total number of projects to 294 projects 
The total loan request amount approved by the Board remained $684.6 million with the understanding 
that Staff would work with applicants to ensure the loan request total remains $684.6 million, or less, 
despite the additional 17 projects. 

4. One applicant withdrew from funding consideration (10/23/12). New loan amounts: 293 projects totaling 
$706,716,481 

 
Board staff vetted the 2014 Construction Loan List for fair and equitable methods to decrease the funding 
demand.  The Board chose a maximum loan amount of $13 million per applicant for the 2014 loan cycle.  To 
meet the need for reducing the loan list total request amount, the Board directed staff to examine various 
methods.   
 
The following outlines three avenues to reduce the total loan request amount and the impacts 
of the three options: 

 

Option A: 

Option A for reducing the loan list request amount is as follows: 

• Maintain the $13 million per applicant loan cap 

• Sort the loan list by Construction Start Date 

• Fund as many projects as possible at their current loan requests up to $500 million total 

Anticipated outcome of Option A: 

• Revised loan list contains 202 Projects totaling $496,863,112  

• The last project starting time is March 2014 

• 91 projects totaling $209,853,369 are removed  

o 53 clients are impacted - 29 clients will have no projects on the list; 24 clients will have 1 or more 
projects on the list 

 

 

Washington State 

Public Works Board 
November 2, 2012 

Board Meeting 

31



Option B: 

Option B for reducing the loan list request amount is as follows: 

• Lower the cumulative maximum loan amount available per applicant in order to ensure that all 
applicants receive some amount of their funding request. 

• Fund all projects 

Anticipated outcome of Option B: 

• The revised maximum loan amount is $6,300,000 

• Revised loan list contains 293 projects totaling $499,949,081 

• The new maximum loan amount impacts 47 applicants 

• The new maximum loan amount impacts 30 projects 

• Some projects will drop off the list due to lack of funding 

 

Option C: 

Option C for reducing the loan list request amount is as follows: 

• Fund all projects with starting time of June 2015 or sooner (through the biennium) 

• Do this by reducing the maximum loan amount 

Anticipated outcome of Option C: 

• The revised maximum loan amount is $6,450,000 

• The revised total loan amount is $500,399,081 

• Revised list contains 140 applicants 

• The new maximum loan amount affects 46 applicants 

• The new maximum loan amount impacts 5 projects totaling $16,535,000 

• There are 3 applicants, with 5 projects that begin on or after July 1, 2015: 

o Clark County, 1 project $13 million 

o Silver Lake Water & Sewer District, 1 project $535,000 

o Snohomish County, 3 projects, $3 million 

• Some projects will drop off the list due to lack of funding 

 

32



 Domestic  
Water 

Sanitary  
Sewer 

Storm 
Water 

Solid Waste & 
Recycling 

Roads, Streets,  
& Bridges TOTALS 

Cities  
& Towns 

 

 54 Apps 
 
  $125.1m 

 

 50 Apps 
 
  $150.1m 

 

 24 Apps 
 
  $40.7m 

  

 50 Apps 
 
  $124.6m 

 
178 Apps 
  
 $440.5m 

Counties 

 

 1 App 
 
  $2.8m 

 

 5 Apps 
 
  $54.5m 

 

 2 Apps 
 
  $3.3M 

 

 4 Apps 
 
  $4.4m 

 

 11 Apps 
 
  $41.8m 

 

23 Apps 
 
 $106.8m 

Public Utility  
Districts 

 

 21 Apps 
 
  $22.4m 

 

 1 App 
 
  $0.3m 

   
  
 

 

22 Apps 
 
 $22.7m 

Water & Sewer 
Districts 

 

 40 Apps 
 
  $75.6m 

 

 29 Apps 
 
  $56.5m 

    

69 Apps 
 
 $132.1m 

Quasi-Municipal 
Corporations 

  

 1 App 
 
  $13m 

    

1 Apps 
 
 $13m 

Flood Control  
District 

   

 1 App 
 
  $4.6M 

   

1 App 
 
 $4.6m 

TOTALS 

 

 116 Apps 
 
 $225.9m 

 

 86 Apps 
 
 $274.4m 

 

 27 Apps 
 
  $48.6m 

 

 4 Apps 
 
  $4.4m 

 

 61 Apps 
 
  $166.4m 

 

294 Apps 
 
 $719.7M 

 

33



 

34



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Clallam County PUD 1 Bobcat Hollow & Old Olympic Hwy Well Drilling $473,000 $473,000
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2011-03

Covington Water District Replace obsolete telemetry (SCADA) system $1,000,000 $1,473,000
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-04

Lakehaven Utility District Green River Filtration Facility $5,000,000 $6,473,000
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-05

Tacoma, City of Green River Filtration Facility $13,000,000 $19,473,000
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2012-05

Thurston PUD Replacement & New Islation Valves at Tanglewilde $660,275 $20,133,275
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2012-05

King County Barton Pump Station Upgrades $13,000,000 $33,133,275 Sanitary Sewer County 2012-06

Port Orchard, City of Bay Street Pump Station $800,000 $33,933,275 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2012-06

Woodinville Water District Automatic Meter Reading Program $4,100,000 $38,033,275
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-06

Northshore Utility District
C735 - Headquarters Redevelopment - Decant, Storage Bin, 

and Fuel Station
$1,750,000 $39,783,275 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-07

Jefferson County PUD 1 Treatment of New Sparling Well, Quimper Water System $500,000 $40,283,275
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2012-08

Bothell, City of Multiway Blvd Phase 1-W West Side Improvements $4,500,000 $44,783,275
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2012-09

Kitsap County Central Kitsap Treatment Plant Reclamation and Reuse $6,800,000 $51,583,275 Sanitary Sewer County 2012-09

Kittitas County Storm Water Infiltration System $250,000 $51,833,275 Storm Water County 2012-09

Lacey, City of
Water Right Mitigation - Regional Reclaimed Water 

Infiltration 
$1,500,000 $53,333,275

Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2012-09

Poulsbo, City of
Central Kitsap Treatment Plant Reclamation and Reuse 

Project
$4,793,920 $58,127,195 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2012-09

Morton, City Wastewater System Improvements $180,000 $58,307,195 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2012-10

Spokane, City of Lincoln Heights Booster Station $2,336,260 $60,643,455
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2012-10

Midway Sewer District Downtown Des Moines Sewer Rehabilitation $2,000,000 $62,643,455 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2012-11

Oak Harbor, City of North Reservoir Replacement $3,000,000 $65,643,455
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2012-11

Alderwood Water and 

Wastewater District
I-5 Trenchless Crossing for Sewer and Water Facilities $7,100,000 $72,743,455 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-12

Ferndale, City of Pump Station Improvements Project $3,800,000 $76,543,455 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of Sewer Collection System Improvements $1,600,000 $78,143,455 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of Telemetry/Electrical System Improvement Project Phase 2 $500,000 $78,643,455 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of West Lagoon Chemical Addition System $300,000 $78,943,455 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-01

Kittitas County Water District #5
Arsenic Media Replacement/Retrofit and Service Meter 

Replacement
$250,000 $79,193,455

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Lacey, City of Southwestern 337 Pressure Zone Improvements $9,300,000 $88,493,455
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-01

Lacey, City of Sources 15 and 16 Replacement $2,200,000 $90,693,455
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-01

Lakehaven Utility District Lakota Digester Mixer Replacement Project $4,750,000 $95,443,455 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C780 - Inglemoor Pump House and SEOC $4,465,230 $99,908,685
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C872 - ULID 1 Side Sewer Rehabilitation $540,000 $100,448,685 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C891 116/124 Sewer Main Project $250,000 $100,698,685 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Pierce County Chambers Creek Regional WWTP Expansion $13,000,000 $113,698,685 Sanitary Sewer County 2013-01

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Reservoir 3 recoating (interior) $680,000 $114,378,685

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Snohomish County Smith Island Setback Levee $3,000,000 $117,378,685 Storm Water County 2013-01

West Richland, City of 2013 Water System Improvements $5,000,000 $122,378,685
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-01

West Richland, City of Biosolids & Street Sweepings Process Facility $1,100,000 $123,478,685 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-01

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Everett WPCF Capacity Expansion Phase B & C $4,580,000 $128,058,685 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-02

Alderwood Water and 

Wastewater District

Water Pressure Reduction and Sewer Overflow Management - 

196th Street SE
$5,900,000 $133,958,685

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

Auburn, City of North Central Storm Improvements Phase 1 $2,719,700 $136,678,385 Storm Water City/Town 2013-03

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 35



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Kitsap County Sewer District #7 Replace Digester 1 $451,000 $137,129,385 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

Lynden, City of Water Treatment Plant Replacement $6,400,000 $143,529,385
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-03

Port Orchard, City of Marina Pump Station $1,927,000 $145,456,385 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-03

SunLand Water District Water Meters & Metering $250,000 $145,706,385
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

Tukwila, City of Andover Park East Water Main Replacement $1,800,000 $147,506,385
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-03

Yakima, City of Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd Grade Separation $2,500,000 $150,006,385
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-03

Auburn, City of Well 4 Power & Chlorination $700,000 $150,706,385
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Bingen, City of Old Line and Steuben Street Water Line Replacement $501,877 $151,208,262
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Coupeville, City of Madrona Way Improvements $700,000 $151,908,262 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-04

Coupeville, City of Water Main Installation - Madrona Way West $200,000 $152,108,262
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

East Wenatchee, City of Eastmont Ave Reconstruction - Grand Rd to 9th St NE $1,000,000 $153,108,262
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-04

Lakewood Water District
Water Main Replacements American Lake, VA Hospital, and 

Sylvan Park
$3,850,000 $156,958,262

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Malaga Water District New Well Source Outfitting $269,560 $157,227,822
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Northshore Utility District C586 - 124/68 Sewer Extension $360,000 $157,587,822 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Peshastin Water District New Reservoir Construction $1,040,288 $158,628,110
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Poulsbo, City of 6th and 9th Avenue Pump Stations Upgrade $1,494,000 $160,122,110 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-04

Poulsbo, City of Big Valley Transmission Main $1,020,000 $161,142,110
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Water Meter Upgrades $4,000,000 $165,142,110

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Reservoir 2 Recoating $1,400,000 $166,542,110

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Silver Acres Watermain Improvements & Extension $225,000 $166,767,110

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Southwest Suburban Sewer 

District
Rehabilitation of Lift Station 14 & Elimination of LS 15 $2,500,000 $169,267,110 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Spokane, City of Water Main Replacement $6,512,740 $175,779,850
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Sumner, City of Central Well Development $3,500,000 $179,279,850
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Thurston PUD Decommissioning of 5 Wells $37,620 $179,317,470
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-04

Whitworth Water District #2 16" Main/Bernhill Road $2,013,900 $181,331,370
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Whitworth Water District #2 16" Main/Chattaroy Rd $1,979,800 $183,311,170
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Winthrop, Town of Bluff Street 8-Inch Pipeline $247,800 $183,558,970
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Winthrop, Town of 8-Inch Pipeline Upsize $53,000 $183,611,970
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-04

Auburn, City of Water Repair & Replacements $1,470,000 $185,081,970
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-05

Coal Creek Utility District 2013 Water System Improvements $785,000 $185,866,970
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-05

College Place, City of College Ave/Rose St Reconstruction Project $7,000,000 $192,866,970
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-05

Duvall, City of Main St Improvements from WWTP to NE 145th St $398,000 $193,264,970
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-05

East Wenatchee Water District
Eastmont Ave Water Main Replacement Project - 3rd to 9th 

NE
$798,000 $194,062,970

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-05

Elma, City of North 3rd Street Rehabilitation Program $669,700 $194,732,670
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-05

Longview, City of Hudson/Douglas/33rd Pump Stations and Forcemain $7,000,000 $201,732,670 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-05

Longview, City of West Longview Lagoons Treatment Plant Biosolids Removal $4,000,000 $205,732,670 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-05

Mountlake Terrace, City of "Main Street" Reconstruction Project $5,750,000 $211,482,670
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-05

Snohomish County 52nd Ave W (Lynnwood City limits to 148th St SW) $3,600,000 $215,082,670 Road/Street/Bridge County 2013-05

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 36



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Snohomish County
North Road Corridor Improvements: SR 524 to 164th Street 

SW
$2,400,000 $217,482,670 Road/Street/Bridge County 2013-05

Thurston PUD Purchase of service meters $110,000 $217,592,670
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD Backflow prevention installation/repalcement Tanglewilde $70,154 $217,662,824
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD Drilling 2 Wells Loma Vista & Fir Tree 2 $50,500 $217,713,324
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-05

Yarrow Point, Town of CIP 1B NE 42nd St Rd End Beach $250,000 $217,963,324 Storm Water City/Town 2013-05

Bellevue, City of NE 4th St Extension/116th to 120th Ave NE $2,900,000 $220,863,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Bothell, City of Horse Creek Improvements Project $8,500,000 $229,363,324 Storm Water City/Town 2013-06

Camas, City of NW 6th Ave Pavement Restoration & Misc Improvements $1,750,000 $231,113,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Camas, City of NW Friberg St/NW Goodwin Rd St Improvement $1,500,000 $232,613,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Scheuber Road Rebuild $1,060,000 $233,673,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Main and Yew Traffic Signal $925,000 $234,598,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Gold Street Grind and Pave $735,000 $235,333,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Washington Ave Rebuild $600,000 $235,933,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Galvin Rd Resurface $560,000 $236,493,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Kresky Ave Overlay $540,000 $237,033,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Cooks HIll Rd Overlay $500,000 $237,533,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Reynolds Ave - Harrison to City Limits $415,000 $237,948,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Chelan, City of Woodin Avenue Bridge Sidewalk Widening $2,500,000 $240,448,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Clark Public Utility District No. 1 Clark Public Utilities Multiple Water System Plan Projects $12,900,000 $253,348,324
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-06

Dayton, City of Water System Improvements: Phase III $260,000 $253,608,324
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Des Moines, City of 24th Ave S Improvements $3,000,000 $256,608,324
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Duvall, City of Big Rock Road Sewer Main Improvements $1,670,000 $258,278,324 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-06

Edmonds, City of WWTP Performance and Reliability Improvement Project $4,500,000 $262,778,324 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-06

Fall City Water District
Uplands Reservoir, Upper Uplands Pump Station & PRV, and 

Uplands PRV & Hydrants
$675,000 $263,453,324

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Ferndale, City of Thornton to Newkirk Watermain Improvements Project $300,000 $263,753,324
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

La Conner, Town of AC Water Transmission Main Replacement - North Segment $626,000 $264,379,324
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Asbestos Cement Water Main Replacement $2,275,000 $266,654,324

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Lakehaven Utility District Sewer Critical Capacity Project $3,250,000 $269,904,324 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Lexington Flood Control Zone 

District
South Fork McCorkle Creek Detention Structure $4,600,000 $274,504,324 Storm Water

Special Purpose 

District
2013-06

Northshore Utility District 425/450 Zone Improvements $500,000 $275,004,324
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Othello, City of SR 24 Industrial Area Sewer Main Improvements $3,000,000 $278,004,324 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-06

Pullman, City of SR 270 / Airport Road Sanitary Sewer Project $1,674,000 $279,678,324 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-06

Ridgefield, City of 1MG Junction Reservoir $2,150,000 $281,828,324
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Ronald Wastewater District 11th Ave NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements $1,161,000 $282,989,324 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Royal City, City of Replace Failing Water Line under Camelia Street $500,000 $283,489,324
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Thomas Lake Lift Station Improvements $312,000 $283,801,324 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Thurston PUD Crowder Rd Mainline Rplacement $96,800 $283,898,124
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-06

Thurston PUD Red Cloud 2 Contact Time Installation $44,600 $283,942,724
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-06

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 37



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Whatcom County Water District 

No. 2
Distribution Main Replacement $814,060 $284,756,784

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

White Salmon, City of 2013 Tohomish Street Improvement Project $770,000 $285,526,784
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-06

Whitman County Transfer Station Facility Upgrades $2,000,000 $287,526,784

Solid 

Waste/Recyclin

g

County 2013-06

Winthrop, Town of Horizon Flats 8" Loop $635,300 $288,162,084
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Winthrop, Town of South SR 20 12-Inch Pipeline $538,900 $288,700,984
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-06

Bridgeport, City of Tacoma Ave Water Main Upgrade $211,300 $288,912,284
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Wastewater Solids Composting & Handling Infrastructure $1,000,000 $289,912,284 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Wastewater Decant Station - Drying Beds $500,000 $290,412,284 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Stormwater Decant Station $187,500 $290,599,784 Storm Water City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Downtown Raingarden Low Impact Development $163,208 $290,762,992 Storm Water City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of
Segement 1  National Ave Improvements - N National Ave to S 

National Ave Merge
$2,700,000 $293,462,992

Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Rehabilitation of Sub-Basin 1002B $1,700,000 $295,162,992 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Redundant Flocculation Basin $1,000,000 $296,162,992
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Rehabilitation of Sub-Basin 1022A $1,000,000 $297,162,992 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Replacement of High Level Reservoir $550,000 $297,712,992
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Chelan County Roadway Preservation $5,000,000 $302,712,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
County 2013-07

Deer Park, City of Deer Park Industrial Area Infrastructure $1,811,000 $304,523,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Gig Harbor, City of Point Fosdick Drive Pedestrian Improvement Project $640,000 $305,163,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Kennewick, City of Southridge Area Infrastructure Development Project $12,800,000 $317,963,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

La Conner, Town of Caledonia Storm Water Pump Station Replacement $711,000 $318,674,992 Storm Water City/Town 2013-07

Leavenworth, city of Water Meter Replacement Program $450,000 $319,124,992
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

LOTT Alliance LOTT Process Control Improvements $13,000,000 $332,124,992 Sanitary Sewer Quasi Municipal 2013-07

Mabton, City of Water System Improvements $900,000 $333,024,992
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Mill Creek, City of East Gateway Urban Village $6,000,000 $339,024,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Othello, City of SR 24 Industrial Area Water Main Improvements $1,800,000 $340,824,992
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Pullman, City of Wawawai Rd Improvements $850,000 $341,674,992
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Shelton, City of Shelton Water System Pressure Zone Improvement $5,007,600 $346,682,592
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District
Lift Station 28B Interceptor Gravity Sewer Main $3,742,000 $350,424,592 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District

Lift Station 21 Gravity Sewer Diversion/Lift Station 46 Force 

Main
$3,398,000 $353,822,592 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-07

Thurston PUD Travis Jack Booster Pump Replacement $123,552 $353,946,144
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-07

Thurston PUD Ivan St Contact Time Installation $44,600 $353,990,744
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-07

Tukwila, City of Soils Reclamation Facility $2,800,000 $356,790,744 Storm Water City/Town 2013-07

Washougal, City of Stormwater Decant Facility $1,000,000 $357,790,744 Storm Water City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of Citywide Chip Seal Resurfacing Program $183,130 $357,973,874
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of Asphalt Resurfacing Project $91,188 $358,065,062
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-07

Whitman County Stateline Project $11,000,000 $369,065,062 Sanitary Sewer County 2013-07

Anacortes, City of Blue Herron Road 3MG Water Storage Tank $3,500,000 $372,565,062
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-08

Concrete, City of 2014 Water System Improvements $840,000 $373,405,062
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-08

Connell, City of City Arterial Chip Seal Project $250,000 $373,655,062
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-08

Lynden, City of Pepin Creek Realignment $6,600,000 $380,255,062 Storm Water City/Town 2013-08

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 38



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Moxee, City of Charron Well & Transmission Main Project $811,000 $381,066,062 Domestic Water City/Town 2013-08

Northshore Utility District
C928 - 451 Pressure Zone Modifications and Hydro-Power 

Turbine
$1,411,600 $382,477,662

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-08

Okanogan, City of Influent Mechanical Fine Screen & Grit Removal Equipment $652,250 $383,129,912 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-08

Okanogan, City of 2nd Ave Manhole Replacement from Harley to Maple ST $130,000 $383,259,912 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-08

Omak, City of Sewer System Improvements $5,706,000 $388,965,912 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2013-08

Thurston PUD Tracey 1 Contact Time Installation $44,600 $389,010,512
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2013-08

Yakima County Terrace Heights Water System Improvements $2,750,000 $391,760,512
Domestic 

Water
County 2013-08

Adams County Bruce Transfer Station Enhancement Project $1,750,000 $393,510,512

Solid 

Waste/Recyclin

g

County 2013-09

Bonney Lake, City of SR410 and 214th Ave E. Intersection Improvments $3,128,000 $396,638,512
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-09

Castle Rock, City of Water Main Replacement Project $350,000 $396,988,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-09

Columbia County Transfer Station Upgrades $350,000 $397,338,512

Solid 

Waste/Recyclin

g

County 2013-09

Coulee City, City of Water System Improvements $1,400,000 $398,738,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-09

Enumclaw, City of Water System Replacements $3,500,000 $402,238,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-09

Kent, City of SE 256th St Widening, Phase 2 $4,000,000 $406,238,512
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-09

King County Water District #90 744 Pressure Zone Project $1,600,000 $407,838,512
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-09

King County Water District #90 Well 3 and SCADA Modifications $805,000 $408,643,512
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-09

Warden, City of Water Source Improvements $1,800,000 $410,443,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-09

Adams County Ritzville Transfer Station Enhancement Project $250,000 $410,693,512

Solid 

Waste/Recyclin

g

County 2013-10

Ridgefield, City of Redevelop Junction Well and Construct Treatment System $1,400,000 $412,093,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-10

Ronald Wastewater District Lift Station 17 and Appurtenances Rehabilitation $300,000 $412,393,512 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-10

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Lift Station 3 Metering Project $250,000 $412,643,512 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-10

Tukwila, City of Interurban Avenue South - S 143rd St to Fort Dent Way $2,500,000 $415,143,512
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2013-10

Walla Walla, City of City of Walla Walla Water Plant LT2 Upgrade $13,000,000 $428,143,512
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-10

Clark Regional Wastewater 

District
Salmon Creek Interceptor Rehab Project $1,000,000 $429,143,512 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-12

Cross Valley Water District Echo Lake Area Improvements $3,080,500 $432,224,012
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-12

Duvall, City of Tolt 2 Supply Line Replacement $1,850,000 $434,074,012
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2013-12

Asotin, City of
Third Street - Washington to Wilson - Crack and Chip Seal and 

Stripe
$46,000 $434,120,012

Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-01

Asotin, City of 2nd Street Improvements $34,000 $434,154,012
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-01

Everett, City of Water Pollution Control Facility Phase C $13,000,000 $447,154,012 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-01

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant Improvements $485,000 $447,639,012

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-01

Port Orchard, City of Well 10 Water Treatment Project $6,000,000 $453,639,012
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-01

Ridgefield, City of North Junction Sewer Collection System $3,500,000 $457,139,012 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-01

Ridgefield, City of Remove Junction Lift Station and Construct New Trunk Sewer $1,000,000 $458,139,012 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-01

Skyway Water & Sewer District Skyway 2 and 4 inch Watermain Replacement Project $2,550,000 $460,689,012
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-01

Sumner, City of Pump Stations Upgrade $4,950,000 $465,639,012 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-01

Birch Bay Water Sewer District WWTP Blowers and Aeration Basin Upgrade $500,000 $466,139,012 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-02

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 39



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Westport, City of South Wellfield - Deep Well $484,100 $466,623,112
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-02

Gig Harbor, City of 38th Avenue Improvement Project Phase 1 and 2 $11,000,000 $477,623,112
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-03

Goldendale, City of West Columbus Neighborhood Improvement Project $750,000 $478,373,112
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
Green River Natural Resources Area - Stormwater Pump 

Station
$2,000,000 $480,373,112 Storm Water City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
Green River Natural Resources Area - Flood Storage 

Improvements
$1,500,000 $481,873,112 Storm Water City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
Upper Mill Creek Dam - Flow Diversion Structure & Channel 

Improvements
$600,000 $482,473,112 Storm Water City/Town 2014-03

Mount Vernon, City of Downtown Flood Protection Project, Phase III $5,000,000 $487,473,112 Storm Water City/Town 2014-03

Richland, City of WWTF Chlorine Hypochlorite Conversion $700,000 $488,173,112 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-03

Skyway Water & Sewer District
Skyway Park North - Phase 1 Sewer Replacement 

Construction
$4,140,000 $492,313,112 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-03

Toppenish, City of Sewer Collection System Improvements $1,000,000 $493,313,112 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-03

Wenatchee, City of Sunnyslope/Chatham Hill Sewer Extension  $3,550,000 $496,863,112 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-03

Bayview Beach Water District Main Distribution Line Replacement - McDonald Dr $133,000 $496,996,112
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

East Wenatchee, City of 10th St NE Reconstruction - Eastmont Ave to Kentucky Ave $6,500,000 $503,496,112
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-04

Granite Falls, City of Automated Water Meter Reading System Installation $250,000 $503,746,112
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-04

Lake Forest Park Water District Low Zone Improvements 2014 $1,958,662 $505,704,774
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

Montesano, City of Street Rehabilitation Program $1,677,320 $507,382,094
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-04

Othello, City of 14th Avenue Reconstruction $2,070,000 $509,452,094
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-04

Quincy, City of Industrial Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent Pipeline $3,860,000 $513,312,094 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of WWTF Headworks Screening $1,835,000 $515,147,094 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of WWTF Solids Handling Improvements $1,400,000 $516,547,094 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Pacific Topsoils Watermain $1,018,000 $517,565,094

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

Stevens PUD
Installation of water mains and construction of water storage 

tank
$532,000 $518,097,094

Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD
Installation of pump controls, well pumps, booster pumps, 

and telemetry systems
$213,000 $518,310,094

Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD Installation of Security Fencing and Sampling Stations $113,000 $518,423,094
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-04

Tumwater, City of E Street Outfall Retrofit $168,750 $518,591,844 Storm Water City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Cleveland Avenue Outfall Retrofit $112,500 $518,704,344 Storm Water City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Tumwater Valley Regional Facility $112,500 $518,816,844 Storm Water City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Somerset Hill Outfall Retrofit $87,500 $518,904,344 Storm Water City/Town 2014-04

Wenatchee, City of North Miller Storm Replacement $2,000,000 $520,904,344 Storm Water City/Town 2014-04

Westport, City of Sewage Pump Station Control Panel Upgrades $232,320 $521,136,664 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-04

Bayview Beach Water District Main Distribution Line Replacement - Shore Ave $345,000 $521,481,664
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Castle Rock, City of Citywide Residential St Improvement Project $504,000 $521,985,664
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-05

Ferndale, City of Church Rd Improvements Project, Main St to Heather Dr $3,000,000 $524,985,664
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-05

Granite Falls, City of Granite Falls AC Water Line Replacement Program $810,000 $525,795,664
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-05

Ione, Town of 8th St Lift Station Replacement $165,000 $525,960,664 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-05

Kitsap County
Bucklin Hill Rd. Estuary Enhancement & Bridge Construction 

Project
$6,200,000 $532,160,664 Road/Street/Bridge County 2014-05

Mukilteo Water & Wastewater 

District
Big Gulch Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements $7,400,000 $539,560,664 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Ronald Wastewater District Carlyle Hall Road Sanitary Sewer Improvements $500,000 $540,060,664 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Samish Water District Lake Samish Pump Station 4 Replacement Project $890,000 $540,950,664 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Seattle, City of Yesler at 4th Ave Bridge Rehabilitation $9,000,000 $549,950,664
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-05

Snoqualmie, City of Water Facility Generators $1,434,000 $551,384,664 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-05

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 40



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District
Fowler Addition, AC Pipe Replacement $2,400,000 $553,784,664

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Thurston PUD Tanglewilde Mainline Replacement of 6" Steel Pipe $2,071,625 $555,856,289
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-05

Tukwila, City of Boeing Access Road Bridge Rehabilitation $2,500,000 $558,356,289
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-05

Washougal, City of WWTP Liquid Waste Expansion Project $9,750,000 $568,106,289 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-05

Yakima County Mahoney Rd Bridge 068 Replacement Project $371,000 $568,477,289
Road/Street/Bri

dge
County 2014-05

Yarrow Point, Town of 92nd Ave NE Pathway Extension $600,000 $569,077,289
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-05

Aberdeen, City of Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall Replacement $1,675,000 $570,752,289 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-06

Bellingham, City of Post Point Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements $13,000,000 $583,752,289 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-06

Birch Bay Water Sewer District Automatic Meter Reading Program $1,000,000 $584,752,289
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Black Diamond, City of 0.5 MG Water Tank Repainting $100,000 $584,852,289
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-06

Bonney Lake, City of Meyers Road Retaining Project $1,580,000 $586,432,289
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-06

Bonney Lake, City of
Veterans Memorial Dr and Angeline Rd Intersection 

Improvements
$560,000 $586,992,289

Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of
76th Ave S/Mill Creek Culvert Replacements & Channel 

Improvements
$2,500,000 $589,492,289 Storm Water City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of Upper Mill Creek Dam - Flood Protection Improvements $2,100,000 $591,592,289 Storm Water City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of
Mill Creek Flood Protection Improvements: Smith St to James 

St
$300,000 $591,892,289 Storm Water City/Town 2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Strawberry Point Sewer Pump Station Improvements $675,000 $592,567,289 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Country Club Sewer Pump Station Improvements $650,000 $593,217,289 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Olympia, City of Southeast Olympia Water Storage Reservoir $6,300,000 $599,517,289
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-06

Prosser, City of Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements $881,500 $600,398,789
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-06

Seattle, City of Fairview Ave Bridge Replacement $4,000,000 $604,398,789
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-06

Snohomish PUD 1 2014 Watermain Replacement Program $1,000,000 $605,398,789
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-06

Snohomish PUD 1 Davies Rd Watermain Replacement $881,000 $606,279,789
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2014-06

Tumwater, City of Linwood/Sapp/Rural Main Extension $550,000 $606,829,789
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of 66th Ave Culvert Replacement $335,000 $607,164,789 Storm Water City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of Belmore Road Culvert Replacement $150,000 $607,314,789 Storm Water City/Town 2014-06

Wenatchee, City of City Streets Overlay $5,800,000 $613,114,789
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-06

Westport, City of Sewage Pump Station 11 Upgrade $341,000 $613,455,789 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-06

Whatcom County  Birch Bay Drive and Pedestrian Project $7,000,000 $620,455,789
Road/Street/Bri

dge
County 2014-06

Snoqualmie, City of Water Reclamation Standby Generator $1,345,000 $621,800,789 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-07

SunLand Water District ROW SBR Blower Efficiency $325,000 $622,125,789 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-07

Grandview, City of Wastewater Pumping Facility Improvements $1,968,000 $624,093,789 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-08

Snoqualmie, City of
Water Reclamation Facility Ultraviolet Disinfection System 

Upgrades
$1,114,000 $625,207,789 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-08

Snoqualmie, City of Sewage Lift Station 2 Upgrades $858,750 $626,066,539 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-08

Stevens PUD Clayton Sewer Treatment Site Improvements $280,000 $626,346,539 Sanitary Sewer PUD 2014-08

Long Beach, City of Seaview Water System Upgrade with Drainage Upgrade $1,300,000 $627,646,539
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2014-09

Port Townsend, City of Southwest Sewer Pump Station $5,000,000 $632,646,539 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-09

Selah, City of 2014 Water System Improvements $1,307,000 $633,953,539 Domestic Water City/Town 2014-09

Wapato, City of Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements $10,000,000 $643,953,539 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2014-09

Jefferson County Port Hadlock WWF $11,000,000 $654,953,539 Sanitary Sewer County 2014-10

Washougal, City of Evergreen Way / 32nd Street Improvements $429,942 $655,383,481
Road/Street/Bri

dge
City/Town 2014-12

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 41



Applicant Project Title

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

CUMULATIVE LOAN 

AMOUNT
System Type Applicant Type

Est Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Ilwaco, City of Sahalee Water Improvements $837,000 $656,220,481
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2015-01

Birch Bay Water Sewer District
PS 3 to PS 4 Sewer Capacity Increase Including Waterline 

Work
$2,000,000 $658,220,481 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-03

Wenatchee, City of Skyline Drive Utilities $1,650,000 $659,870,481 Sanitary Sewer City/Town 2015-03

Birch Bay Water Sewer District Blaine Rd Transmission Main - Double R to Grandview Rd $1,500,000 $661,370,481
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-04

Highline Water District 2015 AC Water Main Replacement Project $5,500,000 $666,870,481
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-04

Black Diamond, City of Ginder Creek Stormwater Treatment Facility $830,000 $667,700,481 Storm Water City/Town 2015-05

Covington Water District Tanks Site 1 Relocation $1,100,000 $668,800,481
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-05

Ronald Wastewater District NE 170th St Sanitary Sewer Improvements $1,188,000 $669,988,481 Sanitary Sewer
Water/Sewer 

District
2015-05

Snohomish County Bridge 603 (Trout Creek) Replacement $1,000,000 $670,988,481 Road/Street/Bridge County 2015-05

Snohomish PUD 1 N Machias Rd 16" Watermain $1,231,000 $672,219,481
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2015-05

Spokane, City of Water Main System Replacement Group 2 $4,151,000 $676,370,481
Domestic 

Water
City/Town 2015-05

Birch Bay Water Sewer District
PS 4 to PS 8 Sewer Capacity Upgrade Including Waterline 

Work
$4,000,000 $680,370,481 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Division 22 Reservoir $960,000 $681,330,481

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Par Lane Sewer Pump Station Improvements $650,000 $681,980,481 Sanitary Sewer

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Point Roberts Water District #4 2014 Water Main Replacement $7,000,000 $688,980,481
Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Snohomish PUD 1 Dutch Hill 1 Tap & 2015 Watermain replacement program $1,201,000 $690,181,481
Domestic 

Water
PUD 2015-06

Clark County NE 10th Ave: NE 154th St to NE 164th St $13,000,000 $703,181,481
Road/Street/Bri

dge
County 2016-01

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Reservoir 5 (6MG) & Booster Station $535,000 $703,716,481

Domestic 

Water

Water/Sewer 

District
2016-04

Snohomish County Bridge 311 (Portage Creek) Replacement $1,000,000 $704,716,481 Road/Street/Bridge County 2017-05

Snohomish County Bridge 565 (Everett Creek) Replacement $1,000,000 $705,716,481 Road/Street/Bridge County 2017-05

Snohomish County Bridge 604 (Giles Road) Replacement $1,000,000 $706,716,481 Road/Street/Bridge County 2017-05

Option A: $13 M Cap @ $500 Resources 42



Applicant 2014 PWTF Construction Loan Request
Project total as 

of 5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Aberdeen, City of $1,675,000 $1,776,741 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-06

Adams County $1,750,000 $1,750,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Adams County 2013-09

Adams County $250,000 $250,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Adams County 2013-10

Alderwood Water and Wastewater 

District
$3,150,000 $8,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2012-12

Alderwood Water and Wastewater 

District
$3,150,000 $10,200,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-03

Anacortes, City of $3,500,000 $3,500,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-08

Asotin, City of $46,000 $46,000 Road/Street/Bridge Asotin City/Town 2014-01

Asotin, City of $34,000 $648,000 Road/Street/Bridge Asotin City/Town 2014-01

Auburn, City of $2,719,700 $2,719,700 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-03

Auburn, City of $700,000 $700,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-04

Auburn, City of $1,470,000 $1,470,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-05

Bayview Beach Water District $133,000 $133,000 Domestic Water Island Water/Sewer District 2014-04

Bayview Beach Water District $345,000 $345,000 Domestic Water Island Water/Sewer District 2014-05

Bellevue, City of $2,900,000 $30,800,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-06

Bellingham, City of $6,300,000 $55,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2014-06

Bingen, City of $501,877 $501,877 Domestic Water Klickitat City/Town 2013-04

Birch Bay Water Sewer District $1,325,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-02

Birch Bay Water Sewer District $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-06

Birch Bay Water Sewer District $1,325,000 $2,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-03

Birch Bay Water Sewer District $1,325,000 $1,500,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-04

Birch Bay Water Sewer District $1,325,000 $4,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-06

Black Diamond, City of $100,000 $115,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2014-06

Black Diamond, City of $830,000 $830,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2015-05

Bonney Lake, City of $3,128,000 $3,860,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2013-09

Bonney Lake, City of $1,580,000 $2,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-06

Bonney Lake, City of $560,000 $700,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-06

Bothell, City of $3,150,000 $6,400,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2012-09

Bothell, City of $3,150,000 $10,252,200 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-06

Bridgeport, City of $211,300 $211,300 Domestic Water Douglas City/Town 2013-07

Camas, City of $1,750,000 $1,750,000 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2013-06

Camas, City of $1,500,000 $4,950,000 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2013-06

Castle Rock, City of $350,000 $350,000 Domestic Water Cowlitz City/Town 2013-09

Castle Rock, City of $504,000 $504,000 Road/Street/Bridge Cowlitz City/Town 2014-05

Centralia, City of $525,000 $1,060,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $925,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $735,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $600,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $560,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $540,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $415,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of $525,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of $525,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of $525,000 $187,500 Storm Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of $525,000 $650,000 Storm Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of $1,260,000 $2,700,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of $1,260,000 $1,700,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of $1,260,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of $1,260,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of $1,260,000 $550,000 Domestic Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chelan County $5,000,000 $6,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan County 2013-07

Chelan, City of $2,500,000 $2,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan City/Town 2013-06

Clallam County PUD 1 $473,000 $473,000 Domestic Water Clallam PUD 2011-03

Clark County $6,300,000 $19,873,907 Road/Street/Bridge Clark County 2016-01

Clark Public Utility District No. 1 $6,300,000 $12,900,000 Domestic Water Clark PUD 2013-06

Clark Regional Wastewater District $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark Water/Sewer District 2013-12

Coal Creek Utility District $785,000 $885,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-05

College Place, City of $6,300,000 $10,726,299 Road/Street/Bridge Walla Walla City/Town 2013-05

Columbia County $350,000 $350,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Columbia County 2013-09

Concrete, City of $840,000 $840,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-08

Connell, City of $250,000 $350,000 Road/Street/Bridge Franklin City/Town 2013-08

Coulee City, City of $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-09

Coupeville, City of $700,000 $1,181,400 Sanitary Sewer Island City/Town 2013-04

Coupeville, City of $200,000 $240,000 Domestic Water Island City/Town 2013-04

Covington Water District $1,000,000 $1,200,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2012-04

Covington Water District $1,100,000 $5,000,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2015-05

Cross Valley Water District $3,080,500 $3,080,500 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-12

Dayton, City of $260,000 $260,000 Domestic Water Columbia City/Town 2013-06

Deer Park, City of $1,811,000 $3,622,000 Road/Street/Bridge Spokane City/Town 2013-07

Des Moines, City of $3,000,000 $7,562,459 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-06

Duvall, City of $398,000 $398,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-05

Duvall, City of $1,670,000 $1,670,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2013-06

OPTION B: All applicants; Loan limit $6.3 million
43



Applicant 2014 PWTF Construction Loan Request
Project total as 

of 5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Duvall, City of $1,850,000 $1,850,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-12

East Wenatchee Water District $798,000 $818,000 Domestic Water Douglas Water/Sewer District 2013-05

East Wenatchee, City of $1,000,000 $6,800,000 Road/Street/Bridge Douglas City/Town 2013-04

East Wenatchee, City of $5,300,000 $6,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Douglas City/Town 2014-04

Edmonds, City of $4,500,000 $4,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish City/Town 2013-06

Elma, City of $669,700 $669,700 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-05

Enumclaw, City of $3,500,000 $3,500,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-09

Everett, City of $6,300,000 $77,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish City/Town 2014-01

Fall City Water District $675,000 $750,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $3,800,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $1,600,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $300,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $300,000 Domestic Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-06

Ferndale, City of $1,050,000 $4,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whatcom City/Town 2014-05

Gig Harbor, City of $3,150,000 $660,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2013-07

Gig Harbor, City of $3,150,000 $11,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-03

Goldendale, City of $750,000 $2,027,200 Road/Street/Bridge Klickitat City/Town 2014-03

Grandview, City of $1,968,000 $1,968,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-08

Granite Falls, City of $250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Snohomish City/Town 2014-04

Granite Falls, City of $810,000 $810,000 Domestic Water Snohomish City/Town 2014-05

Highline Water District $5,500,000 $5,500,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2015-04

Ilwaco, City of $837,000 $837,000 Domestic Water Pacific City/Town 2015-01

Ione, Town of $165,000 $165,000 Sanitary Sewer Pend Oreille City/Town 2014-05

Jefferson County $6,300,000 $37,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Jefferson County 2014-10

Jefferson County PUD 1 $500,000 $2,750,000 Domestic Water Jefferson PUD 2012-08

Kennewick, City of $6,300,000 $17,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Benton City/Town 2013-07

Kent, City of $900,000 $7,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-09

Kent, City of $900,000 $2,000,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of $900,000 $1,500,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of $900,000 $600,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of $900,000 $2,500,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of $900,000 $2,100,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of $900,000 $1,300,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

King County $6,300,000 $16,263,229 Sanitary Sewer King County 2012-06

King County Water District #90 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-09

King County Water District #90 $805,000 $905,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-09

Kitsap County $3,150,000 $30,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap County 2012-09

Kitsap County $3,150,000 $16,161,000 Road/Street/Bridge Kitsap County 2014-05

Kitsap County Sewer District #7 $451,000 $720,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap Water/Sewer District 2013-03

Kittitas County $250,000 $250,000 Storm Water Kittitas County 2012-09

Kittitas County Water District #5 $250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Kittitas Water/Sewer District 2013-01

La Conner, Town of $626,000 $626,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-06

La Conner, Town of $711,000 $711,000 Storm Water Skagit City/Town 2013-07

Lacey, City of $2,100,000 $3,000,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2012-09

Lacey, City of $2,100,000 $14,700,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2013-01

Lacey, City of $2,100,000 $2,300,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2013-01

Lake Forest Park Water District $1,958,662 $1,958,662 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2014-04

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$2,275,000 $2,275,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$485,000 $485,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-01

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$675,000 $675,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$650,000 $650,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$960,000 $960,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-06

Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 

District
$650,000 $650,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-06

Lakehaven Utility District $2,100,000 $214,900,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2012-05

Lakehaven Utility District $2,100,000 $5,000,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-01

Lakehaven Utility District $2,100,000 $3,500,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Lakewood Water District $3,850,000 $6,000,000 Domestic Water Pierce Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Leavenworth, city of $450,000 $450,000 Domestic Water Chelan City/Town 2013-07

Lexington Flood Control Zone District $4,600,000 $4,600,000 Storm Water Cowlitz Special Purpose District 2013-06

Long Beach, City of $1,300,000 $1,439,737 Domestic Water Pacific City/Town 2014-09

Longview, City of $3,150,000 $9,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Cowlitz City/Town 2013-05

Longview, City of $3,150,000 $4,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Cowlitz City/Town 2013-05

LOTT Alliance $6,300,000 $19,428,930 Sanitary Sewer Thurston Quasi Municipal 2013-07

Lynden, City of $3,150,000 $33,600,000 Domestic Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-03

Lynden, City of $3,150,000 $8,380,290 Storm Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-08

Mabton, City of $900,000 $900,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2013-07

OPTION B: All applicants; Loan limit $6.3 million
44



Applicant 2014 PWTF Construction Loan Request
Project total as 

of 5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Malaga Water District $269,560 $269,560 Domestic Water Chelan Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Midway Sewer District $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2012-11

Mill Creek, City of $6,000,000 $16,345,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish City/Town 2013-07

Montesano, City of $1,677,320 $1,999,970 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-04

Morton, City $180,000 $900,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2012-10

Mount Vernon, City of $5,000,000 $10,000,000 Storm Water Skagit City/Town 2014-03

Mountlake Terrace, City of $5,750,000 $10,869,357 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish City/Town 2013-05

Moxee, City of $811,000 $811,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2013-08

Mukilteo Water & Wastewater District $6,300,000 $7,400,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2014-05

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $1,750,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2012-07

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $5,329,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-01

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $540,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-01

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $250,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-01

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $360,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $500,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Northshore Utility District $900,000 $1,411,600 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2013-08

Oak Harbor, City of $3,000,000 $4,620,000 Domestic Water Island City/Town 2012-11

Okanogan, City of $652,250 $652,250 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Okanogan, City of $130,000 $130,000 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Olympia, City of $6,300,000 $8,300,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Omak, City of $5,706,000 $6,110,000 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Othello, City of $2,100,000 $3,340,000 Sanitary Sewer Adams City/Town 2013-06

Othello, City of $2,100,000 $2,010,000 Domestic Water Adams City/Town 2013-07

Othello, City of $2,100,000 $2,270,000 Road/Street/Bridge Adams City/Town 2014-04

Peshastin Water District $1,040,288 $1,040,288 Domestic Water Chelan Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Pierce County $6,300,000 $350,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Pierce County 2013-01

Point Roberts Water District #4 $6,300,000 $14,725,000 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2015-06

Port Orchard, City of $800,000 $800,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2012-06

Port Orchard, City of $1,927,000 $1,927,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2013-03

Port Orchard, City of $3,573,000 $6,000,000 Domestic Water Kitsap City/Town 2014-01

Port Townsend, City of $5,000,000 $5,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Jefferson City/Town 2014-09

Poulsbo, City of $3,786,000 $36,613,200 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2012-09

Poulsbo, City of $1,494,000 $1,494,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2013-04

Poulsbo, City of $1,020,000 $1,020,000 Domestic Water Kitsap City/Town 2013-04

Prosser, City of $881,500 $881,500 Domestic Water Benton City/Town 2014-06

Pullman, City of $1,674,000 $2,174,000 Sanitary Sewer Whitman City/Town 2013-06

Pullman, City of $850,000 $850,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whitman City/Town 2013-07

Quincy, City of $3,860,000 $4,860,000 Sanitary Sewer Grant City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of $700,000 $700,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-03

Richland, City of $1,835,000 $1,835,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-04

Ridgefield, City of $1,575,000 $2,150,000 Domestic Water Clark City/Town 2013-06

Ridgefield, City of $1,575,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Clark City/Town 2013-10

Ridgefield, City of $1,575,000 $3,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-01

Ridgefield, City of $1,575,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-01

Ronald Wastewater District $1,161,000 $1,290,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Ronald Wastewater District $300,000 $325,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-10

Ronald Wastewater District $500,000 $550,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2014-05

Ronald Wastewater District $1,188,000 $1,320,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2015-05

Royal City, City of $500,000 $500,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-06

Samish Water District $890,000 $890,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2014-05

Seattle, City of $3,150,000 $11,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

Seattle, City of $3,150,000 $19,833,918 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-06

Selah, City of $1,307,000 $1,307,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2014-09

Shelton, City of $5,007,600 $6,361,048 Domestic Water Mason City/Town 2013-07

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $680,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-01

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $12,390,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-02

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $4,000,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $225,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $312,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-06

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $250,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2013-10

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $1,018,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2014-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer District $700,000 $2,535,000 Domestic Water Snohomish Water/Sewer District 2016-04

Skyway Water & Sewer District $3,150,000 $3,000,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2014-01

Skyway Water & Sewer District $3,150,000 $4,830,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-03

Snohomish County $900,000 $15,000,000 Storm Water Snohomish County 2013-01

Snohomish County $900,000 $11,053,002 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2013-05

Snohomish County $900,000 $17,852,689 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2013-05

Snohomish County $900,000 $1,270,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2015-05

Snohomish County $900,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2017-05

Snohomish County $900,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2017-05

Snohomish County $900,000 $1,755,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2017-05

Snohomish PUD 1 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2014-06

OPTION B: All applicants; Loan limit $6.3 million
45



Applicant 2014 PWTF Construction Loan Request
Project total as 

of 5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Snohomish PUD 1 $881,000 $881,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2014-06

Snohomish PUD 1 $1,231,000 $1,231,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2015-05

Snohomish PUD 1 $1,201,000 $1,201,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2015-06

Snoqualmie, City of $1,434,000 $1,434,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-05

Snoqualmie, City of $1,345,000 $1,345,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-07

Snoqualmie, City of $1,114,000 $1,114,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-08

Snoqualmie, City of $858,750 $858,750 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-08

Soos Creek Water & Sewer District $2,100,000 $3,742,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer District $2,100,000 $3,398,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer District $2,100,000 $2,400,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2014-05

Southwest Suburban Sewer District $2,500,000 $2,500,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Spokane, City of $2,100,000 $2,336,400 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2012-10

Spokane, City of $2,100,000 $6,512,000 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2013-04

Spokane, City of $2,100,000 $6,151,600 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2015-05

Stevens PUD $532,000 $532,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD $213,000 $213,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD $113,000 $113,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD $280,000 $280,000 Sanitary Sewer Stevens PUD 2014-08

Sumner, City of $3,150,000 $4,000,000 Domestic Water Pierce City/Town 2013-04

Sumner, City of $3,150,000 $4,950,000 Sanitary Sewer Pierce City/Town 2014-01

SunLand Water District $250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Clallam Water/Sewer District 2013-03

SunLand Water District $325,000 $325,000 Sanitary Sewer Clallam Water/Sewer District 2014-07

Tacoma, City of $6,300,000 $214,900,000 Domestic Water Pierce City/Town 2012-05

Thurston PUD $660,275 $660,275 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2012-05

Thurston PUD $37,620 $37,620 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-04

Thurston PUD $110,000 $110,000 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD $70,154 $70,154 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD $50,500 $50,500 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD $96,800 $96,800 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-06

Thurston PUD $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-06

Thurston PUD $123,552 $123,552 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-07

Thurston PUD $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-07

Thurston PUD $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-08

Thurston PUD $2,071,625 $2,071,625 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2014-05

Toppenish, City of $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-03

Tukwila, City of $1,575,000 $1,800,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-03

Tukwila, City of $1,575,000 $2,800,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-07

Tukwila, City of $1,575,000 $11,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-10

Tukwila, City of $1,575,000 $12,250,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

Tumwater, City of $168,750 $501,961 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of $112,500 $440,952 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of $112,500 $885,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of $87,500 $453,151 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of $550,000 $550,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of $335,000 $335,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of $150,000 $150,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Walla Walla, City of $6,300,000 $20,000,000 Domestic Water Walla Walla City/Town 2013-10

Wapato, City of $6,300,000 $10,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-09

Warden, City of $1,800,000 $2,000,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-09

Washougal, City of $2,100,000 $1,000,000 Storm Water Clark City/Town 2013-07

Washougal, City of $2,100,000 $15,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-05

Washougal, City of $2,100,000 $1,508,569 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2014-12

Wenatchee, City of $1,575,000 $7,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Chelan City/Town 2014-03

Wenatchee, City of $1,575,000 $2,000,000 Storm Water Chelan City/Town 2014-04

Wenatchee, City of $1,575,000 $6,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan City/Town 2014-06

Wenatchee, City of $1,575,000 $2,100,000 Sanitary Sewer Chelan City/Town 2015-03

West Richland, City of $5,000,000 $5,500,000 Domestic Water Benton City/Town 2013-01

West Richland, City of $1,100,000 $1,300,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2013-01

Westport, City of $183,130 $183,130 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of $91,188 $91,188 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of $484,100 $484,100 Domestic Water Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-02

Westport, City of $232,320 $232,320 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-04

Westport, City of $341,000 $341,000 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-06

Whatcom County  $6,300,000 $10,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whatcom County 2014-06

Whatcom County Water District No. 2 $814,060 $814,060 Domestic Water Whatcom Water/Sewer District 2013-06

White Salmon, City of $770,000 $1,170,000 Road/Street/Bridge Klickitat City/Town 2013-06

Whitman County $3,150,000 $2,750,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Whitman County 2013-06

Whitman County $3,150,000 $15,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whitman County 2013-07

Whitworth Water District #2 $2,013,900 $2,113,900 Domestic Water Spokane Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Whitworth Water District #2 $1,979,800 $2,079,800 Domestic Water Spokane Water/Sewer District 2013-04

Winthrop, Town of $247,800 $459,000 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-04

Winthrop, Town of $53,000 $53,000 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-04

OPTION B: All applicants; Loan limit $6.3 million
46



Applicant 2014 PWTF Construction Loan Request
Project total as 

of 5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start 

Date (YYYY-MM)

Winthrop, Town of $635,300 $635,300 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-06

Winthrop, Town of $538,900 $538,900 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-06

Woodinville Water District $4,100,000 $4,100,000 Domestic Water King Water/Sewer District 2012-06

Yakima County $2,750,000 $2,750,000 Domestic Water Yakima County 2013-08

Yakima County $371,000 $371,000 Road/Street/Bridge Yakima County 2014-05

Yakima, City of $2,500,000 $14,830,000 Road/Street/Bridge Yakima City/Town 2013-03

Yarrow Point, Town of $250,000 $250,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-05

Yarrow Point, Town of $600,000 $600,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

OPTION B: All applicants; Loan limit $6.3 million
47



 

48



Applicant Project Title
Cumulative 

change?

PROPOSED LOAN 

AMOUNT:

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

Project total as of 

5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start Date (YYYY-

MM)

Aberdeen, City of
Wastewater Treatment Plant Outfall 

Replacement
$1,675,000 $1,776,741 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-06

Adams County Bruce Transfer Station Enhancement Project $1,750,000 $1,750,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Adams County 2013-09

Adams County Ritzville Transfer Station Enhancement Project $250,000 $250,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Adams County 2013-10

Alderwood Water and 

Wastewater District

I-5 Trenchless Crossing for Sewer and Water 

Facilities
Y $3,225,000 $7,100,000 $8,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-12

Alderwood Water and 

Wastewater District

Water Pressure Reduction and Sewer Overflow 

Management - 196th Street SE
Y $3,225,000 $5,900,000 $10,200,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

Anacortes, City of Blue Herron Road 3MG Water Storage Tank $3,500,000 $3,500,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-08

Asotin, City of
Third Street - Washington to Wilson - Crack and 

Chip Seal and Stripe
$46,000 $46,000 Road/Street/Bridge Asotin City/Town 2014-01

Asotin, City of 2nd Street Improvements $34,000 $648,000 Road/Street/Bridge Asotin City/Town 2014-01

Auburn, City of North Central Storm Improvements Phase 1 $2,719,700 $2,719,700 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-03

Auburn, City of Well 4 Power & Chlorination $700,000 $700,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-04

Auburn, City of Water Repair & Replacements $1,470,000 $1,470,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-05

Bayview Beach Water District
Main Distribution Line Replacement - McDonald 

Dr
$133,000 $133,000 Domestic Water Island

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

Bayview Beach Water District Main Distribution Line Replacement - Shore Ave $345,000 $345,000 Domestic Water Island
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Bellevue, City of NE 4th St Extension/116th to 120th Ave NE $2,900,000 $30,800,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-06

Bellingham, City of Post Point Wastewater Treatment Plant $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $55,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2014-06

Bingen, City of
Old Line and Steuben Street Water Line 

Replacement
$501,877 $501,877 Domestic Water Klickitat City/Town 2013-04

Birch Bay Water Sewer District WWTP Blowers and Aeration Basin Upgrade Y $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-02

Birch Bay Water Sewer District Automatic Meter Reading Program Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Whatcom
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Birch Bay Water Sewer District
PS 3 to PS 4 Sewer Capacity Increase Including 

Waterline Work
Y $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-03

Birch Bay Water Sewer District
Blaine Rd Transmission Main - Double R to 

Grandview Rd
Y $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 Domestic Water Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-04

Birch Bay Water Sewer District
PS 4 to PS 8 Sewer Capacity Upgrade Including 

Waterline Work
Y $1,450,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Black Diamond, City of 0.5 MG Water Tank Repainting $100,000 $115,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2014-06

Black Diamond, City of Ginder Creek Stormwater Treatment Facility $830,000 $830,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2015-05

Bonney Lake, City of
SR410 and 214th Ave E. Intersection 

Improvments
$3,128,000 $3,860,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2013-09

Bonney Lake, City of Meyers Road Retaining Project $1,580,000 $2,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-06

Bonney Lake, City of
Veterans Memorial Dr and Angeline Rd 

Intersection Improvements
$560,000 $700,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-06

Bothell, City of
Multiway Blvd Phase 1-W West Side 

Improvements
Y $3,225,000 $4,500,000 $6,400,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2012-09

Bothell, City of Horse Creek Improvements Project Y $3,225,000 $8,500,000 $10,252,200 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-06

Bridgeport, City of Tacoma Ave Water Main Upgrade $211,300 $211,300 Domestic Water Douglas City/Town 2013-07

Camas, City of
NW 6th Ave Pavement Restoration & Misc 

Improvements
$1,750,000 $1,750,000 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2013-06

Camas, City of NW Friberg St/NW Goodwin Rd St Improvement $1,500,000 $4,950,000 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2013-06

Castle Rock, City of Water Main Replacement Project $350,000 $350,000 Domestic Water Cowlitz City/Town 2013-09

Castle Rock, City of Citywide Residential St Improvement Project $504,000 $504,000 Road/Street/Bridge Cowlitz City/Town 2014-05

Centralia, City of Scheuber Road Rebuild Y $687,000 $1,060,000 $1,060,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Main and Yew Traffic Signal Y $900,000 $925,000 $925,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Gold Street Grind and Pave Y $715,000 $735,000 $735,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Washington Ave Rebuild Y $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Galvin Rd Resurface Y $560,000 $560,000 $560,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Kresky Ave Overlay Y $540,000 $540,000 $540,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Cooks HIll Rd Overlay Y $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of Reynolds Ave - Harrison to City Limits Y $410,500 $415,000 $415,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-06

Centralia, City of
Wastewater Solids Composting & Handling 

Infrastructure
Y $687,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Wastewater Decant Station - Drying Beds Y $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of Stormwater Decant Station Y $187,500 $187,500 $187,500 Storm Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Centralia, City of
Downtown Raingarden Low Impact 

Development
Y $163,000 $163,208 $650,000 Storm Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of
Segement 1  National Ave Improvements - N 

National Ave to S National Ave Merge
Y $2,200,000 $2,700,000 $2,700,000 Road/Street/Bridge Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Rehabilitation of Sub-Basin 1002B Y $1,700,000 $1,700,000 $1,700,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Redundant Flocculation Basin Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Rehabilitation of Sub-Basin 1022A Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chehalis, City of Replacement of High Level Reservoir Y $550,000 $550,000 $550,000 Domestic Water Lewis City/Town 2013-07

Chelan County Roadway Preservation $5,000,000 $6,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan County 2013-07

Chelan, City of Woodin Avenue Bridge Sidewalk Widening $2,500,000 $2,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan City/Town 2013-06

Clallam County PUD 1 Bobcat Hollow & Old Olympic Hwy Well Drilling $473,000 $473,000 Domestic Water Clallam PUD 2011-03

Clark Public Utility District No. 1
Clark Public Utilities Multiple Water System Plan 

Projects
$6,450,000 $12,900,000 $12,900,000 Domestic Water Clark PUD 2013-06

Clark Regional Wastewater 

District
Salmon Creek Interceptor Rehab Project $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-12

Coal Creek Utility District 2013 Water System Improvements $785,000 $885,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-05

College Place, City of College Ave/Rose St Reconstruction Project $6,450,000 $7,000,000 $10,726,299 Road/Street/Bridge Walla Walla City/Town 2013-05

Columbia County Transfer Station Upgrades $350,000 $350,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Columbia County 2013-09

Concrete, City of 2014 Water System Improvements $840,000 $840,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-08

Connell, City of City Arterial Chip Seal Project $250,000 $350,000 Road/Street/Bridge Franklin City/Town 2013-08

Coulee City, City of Water System Improvements $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-09

Coupeville, City of Madrona Way Improvements $700,000 $1,181,400 Sanitary Sewer Island City/Town 2013-04

Coupeville, City of Water Main Installation - Madrona Way West $200,000 $240,000 Domestic Water Island City/Town 2013-04

Covington Water District Replace obsolete telemetry (SCADA) system $1,000,000 $1,200,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2012-04

OPTION C: Only projects with starting times in biennium loan max: $6.45m
49



Applicant Project Title
Cumulative 

change?

PROPOSED LOAN 

AMOUNT:

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

Project total as of 

5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start Date (YYYY-

MM)

Covington Water District Tanks Site 1 Relocation $1,100,000 $5,000,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2015-05

Cross Valley Water District Echo Lake Area Improvements $3,080,500 $3,080,500 Domestic Water Snohomish
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-12

Dayton, City of Water System Improvements: Phase III $260,000 $260,000 Domestic Water Columbia City/Town 2013-06

Deer Park, City of Deer Park Industrial Area Infrastructure $1,811,000 $3,622,000 Road/Street/Bridge Spokane City/Town 2013-07

Des Moines, City of 24th Ave S Improvements $3,000,000 $7,562,459 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-06

Duvall, City of 
Main St Improvements from WWTP to NE 145th 

St
$398,000 $398,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-05

Duvall, City of Big Rock Road Sewer Main Improvements $1,670,000 $1,670,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2013-06

Duvall, City of Tolt 2 Supply Line Replacement $1,850,000 $1,850,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-12

East Wenatchee Water District
Eastmont Ave Water Main Replacement Project - 

3rd to 9th NE
$798,000 $818,000 Domestic Water Douglas

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-05

East Wenatchee, City of
Eastmont Ave Reconstruction - Grand Rd to 9th 

St NE
y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $6,800,000 Road/Street/Bridge Douglas City/Town 2013-04

East Wenatchee, City of
10th St NE Reconstruction - Eastmont Ave to 

Kentucky Ave
y $5,450,000 $6,500,000 $6,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Douglas City/Town 2014-04

Edmonds, City of WWTP Performance and Reliability $4,500,000 $4,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish City/Town 2013-06

Elma, City of North 3rd Street Rehabilitation Program $669,700 $669,700 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-05

Enumclaw, City of Water System Replacements $3,500,000 $3,500,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-09

Everett, City of Water Pollution Control Facility Phase C $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $77,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish City/Town 2014-01

Fall City Water District
Uplands Reservoir, Upper Uplands Pump Station 

& PRV, and Uplands PRV & Hydrants
$675,000 $750,000 Domestic Water King

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Ferndale, City of Pump Station Improvements Project y $1,075,000 $3,800,000 $3,800,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of Sewer Collection System Improvements y $1,075,000 $1,600,000 $1,600,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of
Telemetry/Electrical System Improvement 

Project Phase 2
y $1,075,000 $500,000 $500,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of West Lagoon Chemical Addition System y $1,075,000 $300,000 $300,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom City/Town 2013-01

Ferndale, City of
Thornton to Newkirk Watermain Improvements 

Project
y $1,075,000 $300,000 $300,000 Domestic Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-06

Ferndale, City of
Church Rd Improvements Project, Main St to 

Heather Dr
y $1,075,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whatcom City/Town 2014-05

Gig Harbor, City of
Point Fosdick Drive Pedestrian Improvement 

Project
y $640,000 $640,000 $660,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2013-07

Gig Harbor, City of
38th Avenue Improvement Project Phase 1 and 

2
Y $5,810,000 $11,000,000 $11,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Pierce City/Town 2014-03

Goldendale, City of
West Columbus Neighborhood Improvement 

Project
$750,000 $2,027,200 Road/Street/Bridge Klickitat City/Town 2014-03

Grandview, City of Wastewater Pumping Facility Improvements $1,968,000 $1,968,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-08

Granite Falls, City of
Automated Water Meter Reading System 

Installation
$250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Snohomish City/Town 2014-04

Granite Falls, City of
Granite Falls AC Water Line Replacement 

Program
$810,000 $810,000 Domestic Water Snohomish City/Town 2014-05

Highline Water District 2015 AC Water Main Replacement Project $5,500,000 $5,500,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2015-04

Ilwaco, City of Sahalee Water Improvements $837,000 $837,000 Domestic Water Pacific City/Town 2015-01

Ione, Town of 8th St Lift Station Replacement $165,000 $165,000 Sanitary Sewer Pend Oreille City/Town 2014-05

Jefferson County Port Hadlock WWF $6,450,000 $11,000,000 $37,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Jefferson County 2014-10

Jefferson County PUD 1
Treatment of New Sparling Well, Quimper Water 

System
$500,000 $2,750,000 Domestic Water Jefferson PUD 2012-08

Kennewick, City of
Southridge Area Infrastructure Development 

Project
$6,450,000 $12,800,000 $17,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge Benton City/Town 2013-07

Kent, City of SE 256th St Widening, Phase 2 Y $1,000,000 $4,000,000 $7,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-09

Kent, City of
Green River Natural Resources Area - 

Stormwater Pump Station
Y $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
Green River Natural Resources Area - Flood 

Storage Improvements
Y $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
Upper Mill Creek Dam - Flow Diversion Structure 

& Channel Improvements
Y $600,000 $600,000 $600,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-03

Kent, City of
76th Ave S/Mill Creek Culvert Replacements & 

Channel Improvements
Y $1,050,000 $2,500,000 $2,500,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of
Upper Mill Creek Dam - Flood Protection 

Improvements
Y $1,000,000 $2,100,000 $2,100,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

Kent, City of
Mill Creek Flood Protection Improvements: 

Smith St to James St
Y $300,000 $300,000 $1,300,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2014-06

King County Barton Pump Station Upgrades $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $16,263,229 Sanitary Sewer King County 2012-06

King County Water District #90 744 Pressure Zone Project $1,600,000 $1,600,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-09

King County Water District #90 Well 3 and SCADA Modifications $805,000 $905,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-09

Kitsap County
Central Kitsap Treatment Plant Reclamation and 

Reuse 
Y $3,225,000 $6,800,000 $30,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap County 2012-09

Kitsap County
Bucklin Hill Rd. Estuary Enhancement & Bridge 

Construction Project
Y $3,225,000 $6,200,000 $16,161,000 Road/Street/Bridge Kitsap County 2014-05

Kitsap County Sewer District #7 Replace Digester 1 $451,000 $720,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

Kittitas County Storm Water Infiltration System $250,000 $250,000 Storm Water Kittitas County 2012-09

Kittitas County Water District 

#5

Arsenic Media Replacement/Retrofit and Service 

Meter Replacement
$250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Kittitas

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

La Conner, Town of
AC Water Transmission Main Replacement - 

North Segment
$626,000 $626,000 Domestic Water Skagit City/Town 2013-06

La Conner, Town of
Caledonia Storm Water Pump Station 

Replacement
$711,000 $711,000 Storm Water Skagit City/Town 2013-07

Lacey, City of
Water Right Mitigation - Regional Reclaimed 

Water Infiltration 
Y $1,500,000 $1,500,000 $3,000,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2012-09

Lacey, City of Southwestern 337 Pressure Zone Improvements Y $2,750,000 $9,300,000 $14,700,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2013-01

Lacey, City of Sources 15 and 16 Replacement Y $2,200,000 $2,200,000 $2,300,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2013-01

Lake Forest Park Water District Low Zone Improvements 2014 $1,958,662 $1,958,662 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Asbestos Cement Water Main Replacement $2,275,000 $2,275,000 Domestic Water Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

OPTION C: Only projects with starting times in biennium loan max: $6.45m
50



Applicant Project Title
Cumulative 

change?

PROPOSED LOAN 

AMOUNT:

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

Project total as of 

5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start Date (YYYY-

MM)

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District

Agate Heights Water Treatment Plant 

Improvements
$485,000 $485,000 Domestic Water Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-01

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District

Strawberry Point Sewer Pump Station 

Improvements
$675,000 $675,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District

Country Club Sewer Pump Station 

Improvements
$650,000 $650,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Division 22 Reservoir $960,000 $960,000 Domestic Water Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Lake Whatcom Water and 

Sewer District
Par Lane Sewer Pump Station Improvements $650,000 $650,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Lakehaven Utility District Green River Filtration Facility Y $2,150,000 $5,000,000 $214,900,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2012-05

Lakehaven Utility District Lakota Digester Mixer Replacement Project Y $2,150,000 $4,750,000 $5,000,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Lakehaven Utility District Sewer Critical Capacity Project Y $2,150,000 $3,250,000 $3,500,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer 2013-06

Lakewood Water District
Water Main Replacements American Lake, VA 

Hospital, and Sylvan Park
$3,850,000 $6,000,000 Domestic Water Pierce 

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Leavenworth, city of Water Meter Replacement Program $450,000 $450,000 Domestic Water Chelan City/Town 2013-07

Lexington Flood Control Zone 

District
South Fork McCorkle Creek Detention Structure $4,600,000 $4,600,000 Storm Water Cowlitz

Special Purpose 

District
2013-06

Long Beach, City of
Seaview Water System Upgrade with Drainage 

Upgrade
$1,300,000 $1,439,737 Domestic Water Pacific City/Town 2014-09

Longview, City of
Hudson/Douglas/33rd Pump Stations and 

Forcemain
Y $3,225,000 $7,000,000 $9,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Cowlitz City/Town 2013-05

Longview, City of
West Longview Lagoons Treatment Plant 

Biosolids Removal
Y $3,225,000 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Cowlitz City/Town 2013-05

LOTT Alliance LOTT Process Control Improvements $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $19,428,930 Sanitary Sewer Thurston Quasi Municipal 2013-07

Lynden, City of Water Treatment Plant Replacement Y $3,225,000 $6,400,000 $33,600,000 Domestic Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-03

Lynden, City of Pepin Creek Realignment Y $3,225,000 $6,600,000 $8,380,290 Storm Water Whatcom City/Town 2013-08

Mabton, City of Water System Improvements $900,000 $900,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2013-07

Malaga Water District New Well Source Outfitting $269,560 $269,560 Domestic Water Chelan
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Midway Sewer District Downtown Des Moines Sewer Rehabilitation $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Sanitary Sewer King Water/Sewer 2012-11

Mill Creek, City of East Gateway Urban Village $6,000,000 $16,345,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish City/Town 2013-07

Montesano, City of Street Rehabilitation Program $1,677,320 $1,999,970 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-04

Morton, City Wastewater System Improvements $180,000 $900,000 Sanitary Sewer Lewis City/Town 2012-10

Mount Vernon, City of Downtown Flood Protection Project, Phase III $5,000,000 $10,000,000 Storm Water Skagit City/Town 2014-03

Mountlake Terrace, City of "Main Street" Reconstruction Project $5,750,000 $10,869,357 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish City/Town 2013-05

Moxee, City of Charron Well & Transmission Main Project $811,000 $811,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2013-08

Mukilteo Water & Wastewater 

District

Big Gulch Wastewater Treatment Facility 

Improvements
$6,450,000 $7,400,000 $7,400,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Northshore Utility District
C735 - Headquarters Redevelopment - Decant, 

Storage Bin, and Fuel Station
Y $1,694,200 $1,750,000 $1,750,000 Sanitary Sewer King

Water/Sewer 

District
2012-07

Northshore Utility District C780 - Inglemoor Pump House and SEOC Y $1,694,200 $4,465,230 $5,329,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C872 - ULID 1 Side Sewer Rehabilitation Y $540,000 $540,000 $540,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C891 116/124 Sewer Main Project Y $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Northshore Utility District C586 - 124/68 Sewer Extension Y $360,000 $360,000 $360,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Northshore Utility District 425/450 Zone Improvements Y $500,000 $500,000 $500,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Northshore Utility District
C928 - 451 Pressure Zone Modifications and 

Hydro-Power Turbine
Y $1,411,600 $1,411,600 $1,411,600 Domestic Water King

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-08

Oak Harbor, City of North Reservoir Replacement $3,000,000 $4,620,000 Domestic Water Island City/Town 2012-11

Okanogan, City of
Influent Mechanical Fine Screen & Grit Removal 

Equipment
$652,250 $652,250 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Okanogan, City of
2nd Ave Manhole Replacement from Harley to 

Maple ST
$130,000 $130,000 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Olympia, City of Southeast Olympia Water Storage Reservoir $6,300,000 $8,300,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Omak, City of Sewer System Improvements $5,706,000 $6,110,000 Sanitary Sewer Okanogan City/Town 2013-08

Othello, City of SR 24 Industrial Area Sewer Main Improvements Y $2,580,000 $3,000,000 $3,340,000 Sanitary Sewer Adams City/Town 2013-06

Othello, City of SR 24 Industrial Area Water Main Improvements Y $1,800,000 $1,800,000 $2,010,000 Domestic Water Adams City/Town 2013-07

Othello, City of 14th Avenue Reconstruction Y $2,070,000 $2,070,000 $2,270,000 Road/Street/Bridge Adams City/Town 2014-04

Peshastin Water District New Reservoir Construction $1,040,288 $1,040,288 Domestic Water Chelan
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Pierce County Chambers Creek Regional WWTP Expansion $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $350,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Pierce County 2013-01

Point Roberts Water District #4 2014 Water Main Replacement $6,450,000 $7,000,000 $14,725,000 Domestic Water Whatcom
Water/Sewer 

District
2015-06

Port Orchard, City of Bay Street Pump Station Y $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2012-06

Port Orchard, City of Marina Pump Station Y $1,927,000 $1,927,000 $1,927,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2013-03

Port Orchard, City of Well 10 Water Treatment Project Y $3,723,000 $6,000,000 $6,000,000 Domestic Water Kitsap City/Town 2014-01

Port Townsend, City of Southwest Sewer Pump Station $5,000,000 $5,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Jefferson City/Town 2014-09

Poulsbo, City of
Central Kitsap Treatment Plant Reclamation and 

Reuse Project
Y $3,936,000 $4,793,920 $36,613,200 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2012-09

Poulsbo, City of 6th and 9th Avenue Pump Stations Upgrade Y $1,494,000 $1,494,000 $1,494,000 Sanitary Sewer Kitsap City/Town 2013-04

Poulsbo, City of Big Valley Transmission Main Y $1,020,000 $1,020,000 $1,020,000 Domestic Water Kitsap City/Town 2013-04

Prosser, City of Zone 2.5 Water Supply Improvements $881,500 $881,500 Domestic Water Benton City/Town 2014-06

Pullman, City of SR 270 / Airport Road Sanitary Sewer Project $1,674,000 $2,174,000 Sanitary Sewer Whitman City/Town 2013-06

Pullman, City of Wawawai Rd Improvements $850,000 $850,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whitman City/Town 2013-07

Quincy, City of
Industrial Wastewater Treatment Plant Effluent 

Pipeline
$3,860,000 $4,860,000 Sanitary Sewer Grant City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of WWTF Chlorine Hypochlorite Conversion $700,000 $700,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-03

Richland, City of WWTF Headworks Screening $1,835,000 $1,835,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-04

Richland, City of WWTF Solids Handling Improvements $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2014-04

Ridgefield, City of 1MG Junction Reservoir Y $2,025,000 $2,150,000 $2,150,000 Domestic Water Clark City/Town 2013-06

OPTION C: Only projects with starting times in biennium loan max: $6.45m
51



Applicant Project Title
Cumulative 

change?

PROPOSED LOAN 

AMOUNT:

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

Project total as of 

5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start Date (YYYY-

MM)

Ridgefield, City of
Redevelop Junction Well and Construct 

Treatment System
Y $1,400,000 $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Clark City/Town 2013-10

Ridgefield, City of North Junction Sewer Collection System Y $2,025,000 $3,500,000 $3,500,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-01

Ridgefield, City of
Remove Junction Lift Station and Construct New 

Trunk Sewer
Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-01

Ronald Wastewater District 11th Ave NE Sanitary Sewer Improvements $1,161,000 $1,290,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Ronald Wastewater District Lift Station 17 and Appurtenances Rehabilitation $300,000 $325,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-10

Ronald Wastewater District Carlyle Hall Road Sanitary Sewer Improvements $500,000 $550,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Ronald Wastewater District NE 170th St Sanitary Sewer Improvements $1,188,000 $1,320,000 Sanitary Sewer King
Water/Sewer 

District
2015-05

Royal City, City of Replace Failing Water Line under Camelia Street $500,000 $500,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-06

Samish Water District
Lake Samish Pump Station 4 Replacement 

Project
$890,000 $890,000 Sanitary Sewer Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Seattle, City of Yesler at 4th Ave Bridge Rehabilitation Y $3,225,000 $9,000,000 $11,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

Seattle, City of Fairview Ave Bridge Replacement Y $3,225,000 $4,000,000 $19,833,918 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-06

Selah, City of 2014 Water System Improvements $1,307,000 $1,307,000 Domestic Water Yakima City/Town 2014-09

Shelton, City of
Shelton Water System Pressure Zone 

Improvement
$5,007,600 $6,361,048 Domestic Water Mason City/Town 2013-07

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Reservoir 3 recoating (interior) Y $680,000 $680,000 $680,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-01

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Everett WPCF Capacity Expansion Phase B & C Y $1,321,667 $4,580,000 $12,390,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-02

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Water Meter Upgrades Y $1,321,667 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Reservoir 2 Recoating Y $1,321,666 $1,400,000 $1,400,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District

Silver Acres Watermain Improvements & 

Extension
Y $225,000 $225,000 $225,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Thomas Lake Lift Station Improvements Y $312,000 $312,000 $312,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Lift Station 3 Metering Project Y $250,000 $250,000 $250,000 Sanitary Sewer Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-10

Silver Lake Water & Sewer 

District
Pacific Topsoils Watermain Y $1,018,000 $1,018,000 $1,018,000 Domestic Water Snohomish

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-04

Skyway Water & Sewer District
Skyway 2 and 4 inch Watermain Replacement 

Project
Y $3,225,000 $2,550,000 $3,000,000 Domestic Water King

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-01

Skyway Water & Sewer District
Skyway Park North - Phase 1 Sewer 

Replacement Construction
Y $3,225,000 $4,140,000 $4,830,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-03

Snohomish County Smith Island Setback Levee Y $1,816,667 $3,000,000 $15,000,000 Storm Water Snohomish County 2013-01

Snohomish County
52nd Ave W (Lynnwood City limits to 148th St 

SW)
Y $1,816,667 $3,600,000 $11,053,002 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2013-05

Snohomish County
North Road Corridor Improvements: SR 524 to 

164th Street SW
Y $1,816,666 $2,400,000 $17,852,689 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2013-05

Snohomish County Bridge 603 (Trout Creek) Replacement Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,270,000 Road/Street/Bridge Snohomish County 2015-05

Snohomish PUD 1 2014 Watermain Replacement Program $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2014-06

Snohomish PUD 1 Davies Rd Watermain Replacement $881,000 $881,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2014-06

Snohomish PUD 1 N Machias Rd 16" Watermain $1,231,000 $1,231,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2015-05

Snohomish PUD 1
Dutch Hill 1 Tap & 2015 Watermain replacement 

program
$1,201,000 $1,201,000 Domestic Water Snohomish PUD 2015-06

Snoqualmie, City of Water Facility Generators $1,434,000 $1,434,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-05

Snoqualmie, City of Water Reclamation Standby Generator $1,345,000 $1,345,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-07

Snoqualmie, City of
Water Reclamation Facility Ultraviolet 

Disinfection System Upgrades
$1,114,000 $1,114,000 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-08

Snoqualmie, City of Sewage Lift Station 2 Upgrades $858,750 $858,750 Sanitary Sewer King City/Town 2014-08

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District
Lift Station 28B Interceptor Gravity Sewer Main Y $2,150,000 $3,742,000 $3,742,000 Sanitary Sewer King

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District

Lift Station 21 Gravity Sewer Diversion/Lift 

Station 46 Force Main
Y $2,150,000 $3,398,000 $3,398,000 Sanitary Sewer King

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-07

Soos Creek Water & Sewer 

District
Fowler Addition, AC Pipe Replacement Y $2,150,000 $2,400,000 $2,400,000 Domestic Water King

Water/Sewer 

District
2014-05

Southwest Suburban Sewer 

District

Rehabilitation of Lift Station 14 & Elimination of 

LS 15
$2,500,000 $2,500,000 Sanitary Sewer King

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Spokane, City of Lincoln Heights Booster Station Y $2,150,000 $2,336,260 $2,336,400 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2012-10

Spokane, City of Water Main Replacement Y $2,150,000 $6,512,740 $6,512,000 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2013-04

Spokane, City of Water Main System Replacement Group 2 Y $2,150,000 $4,151,000 $6,151,600 Domestic Water Spokane City/Town 2015-05

Stevens PUD
Installation of water mains and construction of 

water storage tank
$532,000 $532,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD
Installation of pump controls, well pumps, 

booster pumps, and telemetry systems
$213,000 $213,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD
Installation of Security Fencing and Sampling 

Stations
$113,000 $113,000 Domestic Water Stevens PUD 2014-04

Stevens PUD Clayton Sewer Treatment Site Improvements $280,000 $280,000 Sanitary Sewer Stevens PUD 2014-08

Sumner, City of Central Well Development Y $3,225,000 $3,500,000 $4,000,000 Domestic Water Pierce City/Town 2013-04

Sumner, City of Pump Stations Upgrade Y $3,225,000 $4,950,000 $4,950,000 Sanitary Sewer Pierce City/Town 2014-01

SunLand Water District Water Meters & Metering $250,000 $250,000 Domestic Water Clallam
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-03

SunLand Water District ROW SBR Blower Efficiency $325,000 $325,000 Sanitary Sewer Clallam
Water/Sewer 

District
2014-07

Tacoma, City of Green River Filtration Facility $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $214,900,000 Domestic Water Pierce City/Town 2012-05

Thurston PUD
Replacement & New Islation Valves at 

Tanglewilde
$660,275 $660,275 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2012-05

Thurston PUD Decommissioning of 5 Wells $37,620 $37,620 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-04

Thurston PUD Purchase of service meters $110,000 $110,000 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD
Backflow prevention installation/repalcement 

Tanglewilde
$70,154 $70,154 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD Drilling 2 Wells Loma Vista & Fir Tree 2 $50,500 $50,500 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-05

Thurston PUD Crowder Rd Mainline Rplacement $96,800 $96,800 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-06

Thurston PUD Red Cloud 2 Contact Time Installation $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-06

Thurston PUD Travis Jack Booster Pump Replacement $123,552 $123,552 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-07

Thurston PUD Ivan St Contact Time Installation $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-07

OPTION C: Only projects with starting times in biennium loan max: $6.45m
52



Applicant Project Title
Cumulative 

change?

PROPOSED LOAN 

AMOUNT:

2014 PWTF 

Construction Loan 

Request

Project total as of 

5/31/12
System Type County Applicant Type

Estimated Start Date (YYYY-

MM)

Thurston PUD Tracey 1 Contact Time Installation $44,600 $44,600 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2013-08

Thurston PUD
Tanglewilde Mainline Replacement of 6" Steel 

Pipe
$2,071,625 $2,071,625 Domestic Water Thurston PUD 2014-05

Toppenish, City of Sewer Collection System Improvements $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-03

Tukwila, City of Andover Park East Water Main Replacement Y $1,612,500 $1,800,000 $1,800,000 Domestic Water King City/Town 2013-03

Tukwila, City of Soils Reclamation Facility Y $1,612,500 $2,800,000 $2,800,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-07

Tukwila, City of
Interurban Avenue South - S 143rd St to Fort 

Dent Way
Y $1,612,500 $2,500,000 $11,500,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2013-10

Tukwila, City of Boeing Access Road Bridge Rehabilitation Y $1,612,500 $2,500,000 $12,250,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

Tumwater, City of E Street Outfall Retrofit $168,750 $501,961 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Cleveland Avenue Outfall Retrofit $112,500 $440,952 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Tumwater Valley Regional Facility $112,500 $885,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Somerset Hill Outfall Retrofit $87,500 $453,151 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-04

Tumwater, City of Linwood/Sapp/Rural Main Extension $550,000 $550,000 Domestic Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of 66th Ave Culvert Replacement $335,000 $335,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Tumwater, City of Belmore Road Culvert Replacement $150,000 $150,000 Storm Water Thurston City/Town 2014-06

Walla Walla, City of City of Walla Walla Water Plant LT2 Upgrade $6,450,000 $13,000,000 $20,000,000 Domestic Water Walla Walla City/Town 2013-10

Wapato, City of Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements $6,450,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Yakima City/Town 2014-09

Warden, City of Water Source Improvements $1,800,000 $2,000,000 Domestic Water Grant City/Town 2013-09

Washougal, City of Stormwater Decant Facility Y $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 Storm Water Clark City/Town 2013-07

Washougal, City of WWTP Liquid Waste Expansion Project Y $5,020,058 $9,750,000 $15,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Clark City/Town 2014-05

Washougal, City of Evergreen Way / 32nd Street Improvements Y $429,942 $429,942 $1,508,569 Road/Street/Bridge Clark City/Town 2014-12

Wenatchee, City of Sunnyslope/Chatham Hill Sewer Extension Y $1,612,500 $3,550,000 $7,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Chelan City/Town 2014-03

Wenatchee, City of North Miller Storm Replacement Y $1,612,500 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 Storm Water Chelan City/Town 2014-04

Wenatchee, City of City Streets Overlay Y $1,612,500 $5,800,000 $6,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Chelan City/Town 2014-06

Wenatchee, City of Skyline Drive Utilities Y $1,612,500 $1,650,000 $2,100,000 Sanitary Sewer Chelan City/Town 2015-03

West Richland, City of 2013 Water System Improvements $5,000,000 $5,500,000 Domestic Water Benton City/Town 2013-01

West Richland, City of Biosolids & Street Sweepings Process Facility $1,100,000 $1,300,000 Sanitary Sewer Benton City/Town 2013-01

Westport, City of Citywide Chip Seal Resurfacing Program $183,130 $183,130 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of Asphalt Resurfacing Project $91,188 $91,188 Road/Street/Bridge Grays Harbor City/Town 2013-07

Westport, City of South Wellfield - Deep Well $484,100 $484,100 Domestic Water Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-02

Westport, City of Sewage Pump Station Control Panel Upgrades $232,320 $232,320 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-04

Westport, City of Sewage Pump Station 11 Upgrade $341,000 $341,000 Sanitary Sewer Grays Harbor City/Town 2014-06

Whatcom County  Birch Bay Drive and Pedestrian Project $6,450,000 $7,000,000 $10,000,000 Road/Street/Bridge Whatcom County 2014-06

Whatcom County Water District 

No. 2
Distribution Main Replacement $814,060 $814,060 Domestic Water Whatcom

Water/Sewer 

District
2013-06

White Salmon, City of 2013 Tohomish Street Improvement Project $770,000 $1,170,000 Road/Street/Bridge Klickitat City/Town 2013-06

Whitman County Transfer Station Facility Upgrades Y $3,225,000 $2,000,000 $2,750,000 Solid Waste/Recycling Whitman County 2013-06

Whitman County Stateline Project Y $3,225,000 $11,000,000 $15,000,000 Sanitary Sewer Whitman County 2013-07

Whitworth Water District #2 16" Main/Bernhill Road $2,013,900 $2,113,900 Domestic Water Spokane
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Whitworth Water District #2 16" Main/Chattaroy Rd $1,979,800 $2,079,800 Domestic Water Spokane
Water/Sewer 

District
2013-04

Winthrop, Town of Bluff Street 8-Inch Pipeline $247,800 $459,000 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-04

Winthrop, Town of 8-Inch Pipeline Upsize $53,000 $53,000 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-04

Winthrop, Town of Horizon Flats 8" Loop $635,300 $635,300 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-06

Winthrop, Town of South SR 20 12-Inch Pipeline $538,900 $538,900 Domestic Water Okanogan City/Town 2013-06

Woodinville Water District Automatic Meter Reading Program $4,100,000 $4,100,000 Domestic Water King
Water/Sewer 

District
2012-06

Yakima County Terrace Heights Water System Improvements $2,750,000 $2,750,000 Domestic Water Yakima County 2013-08

Yakima County Mahoney Rd Bridge 068 Replacement Project $371,000 $371,000 Road/Street/Bridge Yakima County 2014-05

Yakima, City of Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd Grade Separation $2,500,000 $14,830,000 Road/Street/Bridge Yakima City/Town 2013-03

Yarrow Point, Town of CIP 1B NE 42nd St Rd End Beach $250,000 $250,000 Storm Water King City/Town 2013-05

Yarrow Point, Town of 92nd Ave NE Pathway Extension $600,000 $600,000 Road/Street/Bridge King City/Town 2014-05

OPTION C: Only projects with starting times in biennium loan max: $6.45m
53



 

54



 
 
 
Date: October 17, 2012 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Steve Dunk, Infrastructure Finance Specialist 
 
Subject: APPROVAL OF THE RANKED ENERGY/WATER EFFICIENCY APPLICATIONS 
 
 
 
Background Information:  The Public Works Board received 12 energy & water efficiency loan applications 
for a total request of $5,605,966.  The Board has $4,850,000 to distribute for this program.   
 
Initially, the program was oversubscribed by $755,966.  The rating and ranking team met once to determine 
their methodology on how they were going to score the application criteria in an equitable and consistent 
manner.  The team met a second time to compare score totals, discuss anomalies and prepare a ranked list for 
the Board to approve.   
 
During the ranking of the applications, the City of Tukwila decided to withdraw their $1,000,000 loan request. 
Tukwila had previously been awarded an energy grant from the Dept. of Commerce, a loan from the Public 
Works Board energy program, for the same project, affected Tukwila’s overall leverage and disqualified them 
for the grant. Tukwila decided to move forward with the grant and seek other loan funding. 
 
Due to Tukwila’s withdrawal, the remaining eleven (11) applications were able to be funded.  In addition, there 
is still $244,034 left in the program. 
 
Request:  Approval of the eleven energy/water efficiency loans and an additional six months to work with the 
existing applicants that may have cost overruns and need the unspent money. 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

November 2, 2012 
Board Meeting 

55



 

56



Energy/ Water Loan 

Applications Review

Reviewer: Connie Rivera Jacki Skaught Pat Gibbon Roger Wigfield Steve Dunk

Applicant  Loan Amount  Score Score Score Score Score

Total 

Scores

City of Longview 1,000,000             50 55 60 55 55 275

Columbia County 500,000                 47 60 55 52 55 269

City of Kittitas 72,275                   47 52 55 55 50 259

King County 668,215                 52 44 52 52 55 255

City of Montesano 53,000                   50 50 55 50 45 250

City of Goldendale 162,735                 37 52 52 52 42 235

City of Lynden 550,000                 42 42 47 39 50 220

Spokane County 639,041                 44 42 44 44 42 216

City of Sequim 520,000                 39 47 34 34 42 196

City of Enumclaw 200,000                 44 39 39 39 34 195

City of Ilwaco 240,700                 42 39 37 24 37 179

Total 4,605,966$          

Available Funds 4,850,000$          

Remaining Funds 244,034$             

Tuckwila‐removed themselves 

from consideration due to 

energy grant leverage  44 44 42 47 45 222

57



 

58



 

DATE:  October 18, 2012 

 

TO:  Public Works Board  

 

FROM:  Terry Dale, Client Services Representative 

 

SUBJECT: Funding Recommendations for 2013 PWTF Pre-Construction Projects  

 

BACKGROUND 

The Public Works Board (Board) received $3 million appropriation from the 2012 Legislature for the 

PWTF Pre-Construction Program.  At the July 2012 meeting of the Board, the policy to guide the 

implementation of the 2013 PWTF Pre-Construction Loan Program was adopted.  

 

The Board adopted policies: 

• Loan Limit:  $300,000 maximum per jurisdiction 

• Exclusions: Projects on the 2014 PWTF loan list were not eligible to apply for this cycle of 

PWTF Pre-Construction loans. 

• Interest Rate: 1%  

• Loan Term:  Five years (extend to 20 years if under construction by June 2014.) 

 

The application cycle opened August 2 and closed September 14, 2012.  Ten applications requesting 

approximately $2 million were submitted.  Five Board staff and one Contracts Administration Unit 

staff reviewed applications using an abbreviated process that assigned a rating accounting for: 

• Project construction start date 

• Funding sources and statuses 

• Capital Facilities Plan status 

• Compliance issues and actions 

• Project purpose and priority 

 

A handout will be provided at the meeting for review and action.   
 

 
 
 

 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

November 2, 2012 
Board meeting  

59



 

60



Placeholder 

2012 DWSRF Recommended Loan List Revision 

61



 

62



TAB 5 

Policy 

63



 

64



PWB Policy Bill Discussion on Z-0079.1 
10/23/12 

Attendees: 

Blair Burroughs, WASWD 
Darwin Smith, PWB 
JC Baldwin, PWB 
Jeff Nejedly, Ecology 
Denise Clifford, DOH 
John Kounts, WAPUDA 
Karen Larkin, Commerce 
Chris McCord, DOH 
Scott Hazlegrove, WASWD 
Ashley Probart, AWC 
Scott Hutsell, PWB 
Bubba Scott, PWB 
Rick Slunaker, AGC 
Gary Rowe, WSAC 
Eric Johnson, WPPA 
Peter McMillin, USDA RD 
Leonard Bauer, Commerce 

John LaRocque 
Cecilia Gardener 
Dawn Eychaner 
Terry Dale 
Steve Dunk 

 

Name Issue/Comment 

Scott H Sequencing of traditional/non-traditional systems needs clarification 

John K Section 8 – 15% cap includes matches for revolving funds. Is this adequate? 
Refinancing local debt – will that be discussed and amended further 

Darwin Make it clear that financial assistance is loans 

Denise C 15% including state match for federal programs – need to discuss 
Appreciates inclusion of WSARP 

Jeff N 15% including state match for federal programs – need to discuss 
Site specific facility planning – Section 2 definition of “planning project” – 
clarify that site specific planning would be included under pre-construction 
rather than planning. 

65



New section 4 (7): interest rates & term setting- add “taking into 
consideration other funding programs’ rate structures, including federal 
programs” 
Section 5(1): Add “in coordination with other state infrastructure funding 
agencies” to align with ECY and DOH needs assessment planning 
GMA alignment with ECY is good 
Section 9 – PSP: a partner has never been defined by the partnership. 
Probably can change that wording. Action agenda is in place, but partner is 
no longer applicable. 
Section 10 – criteria to prioritize is a great idea 
 

Scott Hazlegrove Question about why the board is proceeding with a policy bill during 2013 
session? New administration may have a strong view on how PWB 
accomplishes policy objectives. Is this timely or should we wait for new 
administration? Recommends latter. 
Draft seems to include intent and reflected in Section 10, why is the board 
undertaking a major revision in the project selection process? Doesn’t think 
this kind of major policy change is warranted given the lack of progress on 
this issue in the legislature in recent years. 
 

Ashley P If Intent section is kept, “state priority policy objective” is oblique and could 
shift based on changing issues. 
A mainstay of the PWAA is responding to regulatory change in infrastructure 
systems. This should be reflected clearly in the bill draft. If this is added to 
intent, may need other changes in rest of draft 
(9) add “or future category as determined by the board” to give the board 
more flexibility here 
Sec. 8: 85% / 15% language: Are the percentages important or is it more 
important for the board to have the authority to blend pre-construction and 
construction based on board policy rather than laid out in statute. 
 

Rick S. Sec. 4(3): language is confusing and a more direct way of saying this would 
be better 
Sec. 5: add an annual report to the public as part of the board’s 
responsibilities 
 

Gary R. Sec. 5 (2) (c): what is expected of board members who  would be required 
with this language to provide advocacy at natl. level. This could create 
conflicts for local officials who are restricted in advocacy roles. 
Sec. 9 (2): GMA compliance. Counties will be trying to make modifications to 
GMA requirements. Limitation should be in place to the area in which the 
noncompliance is occurring. 
 

Eric J. Port perspective is coming from Eco Devo – glad to see that called out. 

66



May be time to revisit whether ports should be eligible for PWTF – exclusion 
may not make sense anymore. 
Mitigated if CERB has a healthy budget. If CERB is under-funded, may make 
sense to add ports as an eligible entity. 
 

 

General Discussion/Comments: 

PWAA is growing significantly, need to expand eligible categories or could potentially leave money on 
the table. Builds on last year’s efforts. Is there anything critical in this bill that must move forward in 
2013. If so, maybe cut out that piece and move forward with it rather than an overall policy bill change.  
Stormwater compliance struggles at local level, grants are wanted at local level to assist with this, 
however the need far exceeds what is available in PWAA. Mistake to expand the eligible systems, fund is 
actually deficient in meeting the needs of eligible projects.  

Is PWB folding CERB board into its mission? If not, what is the purpose of expanding the eligibility? 

Most compelling issues that need to be brought forward: GMA compliance alignment.  

Does this open up PWTF to pay for planning activities required under GMA? Definitions(10), planning 
definition appears to allow those activities.  This retains past allowable activities under existing statute. 

Recommendation to stay away from revamping selection criteria for projects or make clearer. May 
never have additional money to bring forward non-traditional projects because need is so great in 
traditional projects.  Perhaps consider a newly created pot of funds for non-traditional projects rather 
than funding from the same pot. 

Concern that non-traditional will grow to the extent that traditional systems are excluded or 
underfunded 

Intent: 

Could add “such as” to follow state policy priority objectives. Missing “(g) meeting state and federal 
regulatory requirements” 

Intent section is not helpful. Could foster argument about prioritization of objectives. Asking for trouble. 
Could shorten substantially. 

Clarify which resources the state intends to invest as stated in Sec.1(1). Clarify whether they are locally 
collected taxes, loan repayments, etc. 

Can be an important section for the political conversation, especially with legislative member turnover, 
long term memory, etc. 

67



Clarify why maximizing federal resources needs to be included as a policy objective. Not necessary in the 
intent section. 

Federal resources identification is helpful in encouraging ongoing coordination between state and 
federal infrastructure funding programs. 

Loan guarantees removed from old statute due to no use by clients. Could be valuable for local govts. If 
promoted more extensively.  

Definitions 

(8) Local Governments: Ports Assoc. advocates for considering ports as an eligible entity. Original 
thinking for exclusion was that ports have revenue options that are not avail. To other local govts. CERB 
is a resource for ports when adequately funded. Also need to look at how robust MTCA is.  If the 
program is intended/designed to construct certain types of infrastructure, does it make sense to exclude 
an entity that constructs that type of infra. If intended/designed to support a certain type of local govt, 
then exclusion could fit. Board discussion is needed. Ports do not currently contribute a portion of tax 
that feeds the PWAA.  

Board membership 

Why change from public works manager to any official in public works?  Move Gov. balancing 
considerations back in to keep the diversity intended. 

Section 4 

Staff presented drafting changes to clarify traditional/non-traditional systems and which is eligible for 
which programs. Also moved leg. Approval of two lists to this section. 

Why not include pre-construction as an eligible program for non-traditional systems? 

Danger of giving legislature opportunity to create two lists and underfund traditional systems by making 
it easier for the legislature to fund more attractive non-traditional projects. 

For cities, the fact that non-tradl. Systems would be based on loans would likely create less demand for 
non-trad. 

Can more substantive “fenceposts” be added to the bill to protect traditional systems’ funding. 
Advancing a proposal for a separate funding stream for non-traditional projects may be a better 
approach. 

Past experience with adding solid waste systems,  leg added solid waste tax stream to offset any 
impacts. Only 4 solid waste projects have been constructed since the addition. 

Section 5: 

“advocacy” at national level – term may need to be adjusted so that it is not equated with lobbying.  

68



Could have code reviser do a word search on “advocacy” and see where else it appears and how it is 
used. 

Why is needs assessment an optional activity with “may” instead of “must”? Recommend submitting as 
a “must” in order to demonstrate need for the PWAA.  If non-traditional systems are included, this could 
dramatically increase cost of the assessment. If this needs info. Is included in existing capital facilities 
plans, why recollect. Plan to roll-up existing capital facilities plan data that has been adopted and 
submitted by local govts. and use that data, with an online update avail. to local govts. to keep info up-
to-date. Capital facilities plans will not align very well with non-traditional projects. 

 

Section 8: 

85% / 15%:  Including federal match in the 15% is problematic and should be taken off the top, rather 
than be included in the 15%. Intent is to have policy makers and budget writers look at the account and 
transfers holistically. Given the size of the account, match should be adequately covered in the 15%. If 
there is not enough within the 15%, how would the federal match work? Precedent has been set by leg. 
To secure the match even when the fund was swept. Add language to clarify that federal match has pre-
eminence within the 15%.  “programs other than construction loans” could be other state programs, not 
just PWB programs (CERB for example). Need to capture that 15% is for activities supported by the 
PWAA.  Board should include in its report transfers and other uses of the fund. 

If 15% must conform with requirements in Section 4, how can PWAA be used as match if those 
programs are not included in Section 4? May be helpful to define what those other state programs are in 
Section 4 and make sure the two sections are in harmony with one another. 

Section 9: 

Previous discussion with counties on GMA language was part of an earlier compromise removing ports 
from eligibility. If ports are added back in, GMA discussion may need to be revisited with counties. 

Why replacing “loan” with “financial assistance”? Keep just as “loan” because the fewer items that 
change, the easier to move the bill. Financial assistance could open up to other vehicles and create 
concerns. 

Puget Sound Partnership language can be modified to be less rigorous. Conform with newest wording 
coming from PSP. Be cautious with wording “referenced in action agenda” because the plan is quite 
broad. Non-traditional projects could have issues around this. (8)(a) can strike laundry list and partner 
def. (b) because the language is separate from (a), could create a disadvantage for those who are not 
eligible. Whether the project is on the action agenda may be the only item we need. 

Section 10: 

69



Why retaining (4)? Remnant of “fish and chips.” May be better to eliminate all but criteria “the board 
considers necessary.” If this is done, then the priorities listed in the intent section become even more 
important. Be cautious – opens board up to a challenge.  Could add “such criteria as enumerated in 
Section 1” to ensure consistency.  

Readiness to proceed is not found in criteria. This has been significant for the leg in the past. 

Refinancing: two instances in which refinancing will be allowed will be existing construction projects or 
would bring in more federal funds. 

Next steps: staff will compile recommendations and drafting changes and bring to policy committee. 
Committee will consider these changes and bring forward a draft to the full PWB for consideration. 

**Notify this group of policy bill committee and board discussions** 

 

 

 

 

70



_____________________________________________ 
 

BILL REQUEST - CODE REVISER'S OFFICE 
_____________________________________________ 

 
 
 
BILL REQ. #:  Z-0079.1/13 
 
ATTY/TYPIST:  AI:eab 
 
BRIEF DESCRIPTION: Concerning the public works board. 

71



 

 AN ACT Relating to the public works board; amending RCW 

43.155.010, 43.155.020, 43.155.030, 43.155.050, and 43.155.070; adding 

new sections to chapter 43.155 RCW; and repealing RCW 43.155.040, 

43.155.060, 43.155.065, 43.155.068, 43.155.075, 43.155.110, and 

43.155.120. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON: 

Sec. 1.  RCW 43.155.010 and 1996 c 168 s 1 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

(1) The legislature finds that ((there exists in the state of 

Washington over four billion dollars worth of critical projects for 

the planning, acquisition, construction, repair, replacement, 

rehabilitation, or improvement of streets and roads, bridges, water 

systems, and storm and sanitary sewage systems.  The December, 1983 

Washington state public works report prepared by the planning and 

community affairs agency documented that local governments expect to 

be capable of financing over two billion dollars worth of the costs of 

those critical projects but will not be able to fund nearly half of 

72



the documented needs. 

 The legislature further finds that Washington's local governments 

have unmet financial needs for solid waste disposal, including 

recycling, and encourages the board to make an equitable geographic 

distribution of the funds)) while local governments are responsible 

for creating, developing, managing, financing, operating, and 

maintaining local infrastructure systems, state priority policy 

objectives are served by investing financial and technical resources 

in these local systems.  A significant backlog of projects to build, 

repair, and improve local public infrastructure systems exists.  The 

state intends to strategically invest resources to address this 

backlog and to promote the following priority policy objectives: 

 (a) Preservation, enhancement, or achievement of public health and 

safety; 

 (b) Protection of the state's environment; 

 (c) Promotion of economic development; 

 (d) Encouragement of well-managed local infrastructure systems; 

 (e) Encouragement of the acquisition and use of federal funds to 

 finance local infrastructure projects; and 

 (f) Sustaining the state's infrastructure assistance capacity. 

(2) It is the policy of the state of Washington to encourage self-

reliance by local governments in meeting their public works needs and 

to assist in the financing of critical public works projects by 

((making loans, financing guarantees,)) providing financial and 

technical assistance available to local governments for these 

projects. 

Sec. 2.  RCW 43.155.020 and 2009 c 565 s 33 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

 Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in 

this section shall apply throughout this chapter. 

 (1) "Board" means the public works board created in RCW 

43.155.030. 

 (2) "Capital facility plan" means a capital facility plan required 

by the growth management act under chapter 36.70A RCW or, for local 

73



governments not fully planning under the growth management act, a plan 

required by a regulating state agency or the public works board. 

 (3) "Construction" means construction of public works projects as 

defined within this chapter. 

 (4) "Department" means the department of commerce. 

 (((4) "Financing guarantees" means the pledge of money in the 

public works assistance account, or money to be received by the public 

works assistance account, to the repayment of all or a portion of the 

principal of or interest on obligations issued by local governments to 

finance public works projects.)) 

 (5) "Director" means the director of the department. 

 (6) "Emergency" means a construction project in a traditional 

system made necessary by a natural disaster or an immediate and 

emergent threat to the public health and safety due to unforeseen or 

unavoidable circumstances as evidenced by a local government 

declaration. 

 (7) "Financial assistance" means loans unless otherwise specified 

in this chapter. 

 (8) "Local government((s))" means ((cities)) a city, town((s)), 

((counties)) county, special purpose district((s)), and any other 

municipal corporation((s)) or quasi-municipal corporation((s)) in the 

state, excluding school districts and port districts, authorized by 

law to fund public works. 

 (((6))) (9) "Nontraditional system" means telecommunications, 

energy, flood levees, public buildings and facilities, rail, criminal 

justice facilities, and parks and recreation facilities. 

 (10) "Planning project" means the process through which a 

jurisdiction creates and adopts a capital facilities plan, a 

comprehensive system plan, or equivalent. 

 (11) "Policy objectives" means state priorities that guide the 

investment of public works assistance account funds as enumerated in 

this chapter. 

 (12) "Preconstruction" means activities including, but not limited 

to, project planning, design, engineering, bid document preparation, 

environmental studies, right-of-way acquisition, and other preliminary 

74



phases of construction projects as determined by the public works 

board. 

 (13) "Public works project" means a project ((of a local 

government for)) listed in a capital facilities plan or equivalent 

that results in the planning, acquisition, construction, repair, 

reconstruction, replacement, rehabilitation, or improvement of 

((streets and roads, bridges, water systems, or storm and sanitary 

sewage systems and solid waste facilities, including recycling 

facilities.  A planning project may include the compilation of 

biological, hydrological, or other data on a county, drainage basin, 

or region necessary to develop a base of information for a capital 

facility plan)) a traditional system, excluding rolling stock. 

 (((7) "Solid waste or recycling project" means remedial actions 

necessary to bring abandoned or closed landfills into compliance with 

regulatory requirements and the repair, restoration, and replacement 

of existing solid waste transfer, recycling facilities, and landfill 

projects limited to the opening of landfill cells that are in existing 

and permitted landfills. 

 (8))) (14) "Technical assistance" means training and other 

services provided to local governments to: 

 (a) ((Help such local governments plan, apply, and qualify for 

loans and financing guarantees from the board, and (b) help local 

governments improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire, 

construct, repair, replace, rehabilitate, and maintain public 

facilities)) Improve their ability to plan for, finance, acquire, 

construct, reconstruct, and maintain infrastructure systems; and/or 

 (b) Improve their technical, financial, and/or managerial capacity 

to operate their infrastructure systems in a manner consistent with 

long-term sustainability. 

 (15) "Traditional system" means a drinking water system, sanitary 

sewer system, storm water system, solid waste or recycling system, 

bridge, or roadway. 

Sec. 3.  RCW 43.155.030 and 1999 c 153 s 58 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

75



 (1) The public works board is hereby created. 

 (2) The board shall be composed of thirteen members appointed by 

the governor for terms of four years((, except that five members 

initially shall be appointed for terms of two years)).  The board 

shall include:  (a) Three members, including two ((of whom shall be)) 

elected officials and one ((shall be a public works manager)) official 

working in public works or a related field, appointed from a list of 

((at least six)) persons nominated by the association of Washington 

cities or its successor; (b) three members, including two ((of whom 

shall be)) elected officials and one ((shall be a public works 

manager)) official working in public works or a related field, 

appointed from a list of ((at least six)) persons nominated by the 

Washington state association of counties or its successor; (c) ((three 

members appointed from a list of at least six persons nominated 

jointly by the Washington public utility districts association and a 

state association of water-sewer districts, or their successors)) one 

member appointed from a list of persons nominated by the Washington 

public utility districts association or its successor; (d) two members 

appointed from a list of persons nominated by the Washington 

association of sewer and water districts or its successor; and (((d))) 

(e) four members appointed from the general public.  In appointing the 

four general public members, the governor shall endeavor to balance 

the geographical composition of the board and to include members with 

special expertise in relevant fields ((such as public finance, 

architecture and civil engineering, and public works construction)).  

The governor shall appoint one of the general public members of the 

board as chair.  The term of the chair shall coincide with the term of 

the governor. 

 (3) ((Staff support to the board shall be provided by the 

department. 

 (4))) Members of the board shall receive no compensation but shall 

be reimbursed for travel expenses under RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060. 

 (((5))) (4) If a vacancy on the board occurs by death, 

resignation, or otherwise, the governor shall fill the vacant position 

for the unexpired term.  Each vacancy in a position appointed from 

76



lists provided by the associations under subsection (2) of this 

section shall be filled from a list of ((at least three)) persons 

nominated by the relevant association or associations.  Any members of 

the board((, appointive or otherwise,)) may be removed by the governor 

for cause in accordance with RCW 43.06.070 and 43.06.080. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 4.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 

RCW to read as follows: 

 In order to assist local governments, the board: 

 (1) Must manage the public works assistance account in such a way 

as to ensure its sustainability; 

 (2) Must execute contracts or otherwise financially obligate funds 

from the public works assistance account for projects approved for 

funding by the board under the following programs: 

 (a) Construction; 

 (b) Preconstruction; 

 (c) Capital facilities planning; 

 (d) Emergency; 

 (e) Energy or water efficiency; and 

 (f) Water system acquisition and rehabilitation as created by RCW 

70.119A.190; 

 (g) Any other program authorized by the legislature; 

 (3) Must restrict financial assistance for all programs other than 

construction to traditional systems only; 

 (4) Must provide financial assistance for traditional systems in 

accordance with RCW 43.155.070; 

 (5) May submit a list to the legislature of recommended public 

works projects in nontraditional systems only after all public works 

projects in traditional systems have been recommended for funding; 

 (6) May provide grants for water system acquisition and 

rehabilitation projects; 

 (7) May require such terms and conditions and may charge such 

rates of interest on its loans as it deems necessary or convenient to 

carry out the purposes of this chapter.  Money received from local 

governments in repayment of loans made under this section must be paid 

77



into the public works assistance account for uses consistent with this 

chapter; 

 (8) May not refinance existing debt or financial obligations of 

local governments, except for short-term debt associated with 

construction projects approved by the board; 

 (9) Must adopt a program of technical assistance to local 

governments in conjunction with its financial assistance programs. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 5.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 

RCW to read as follows: 

 (1) The board may, beginning in June 2015 and every four years 

thereafter, provide the governor and appropriate committees of the 

legislature with a comprehensive assessment of local infrastructure 

needs and potential resources within the state to meet those needs. 

 (2) The board must: 

 (a) Establish and maintain direct collaborative relations with 

governmental, private, and other financing organizations, advocate 

groups, and other stakeholders associated with infrastructure 

financing; 

 (b) Provide direct information and advice to the governor and 

appropriate committees of the legislature on matters related to local 

government infrastructure financing; and 

 (c) At the direction of the governor, provide information and 

advocacy at the national level on matters related to local government 

infrastructure financing. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 6.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 

RCW to read as follows: 

 The board must: 

 (1) Consistent with the guidelines issued by the office of 

financial management and in consultation with the department, prepare 

biennial operating and capital budgets and, as needed, update these 

budgets during the biennium; 

 (2) Accept or reject any gifts, grants, or loans of funds, 

property, or financial or other aid in any form from any other source 

78



on any terms and conditions that are not in conflict with this 

chapter; 

 (3) Adopt rules under chapter 34.05 RCW as necessary to carry out 

the purposes of this chapter; and 

 (4) Do and perform all acts and things necessary or convenient to 

carry out the powers expressly granted or implied under this chapter. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 7.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 

RCW to read as follows: 

 (1) The department must: 

 (a) In collaboration with the board, and in accordance with the 

board's operating budget, provide staff to the board necessary to 

efficiently and effectively carry out the duties of this chapter; and 

 (b) Submit the board's operating and capital budgets in accordance 

with guidelines set by the office of financial management. 

 (2) The director must: 

 (a) Be accountable to the board for operating and capital 

expenditures from the account; and 

 (b) Represent the interests and concerns of the board as a member 

of the governor's executive cabinet. 

Sec. 8.  RCW 43.155.050 and 2012 2nd sp.s. c 2 s 6004 are each 

amended to read as follows: 

(1) The public works assistance account is hereby established in the 

state treasury.  Money may be placed in the public works assistance 

account from the proceeds of bonds when authorized by the legislature 

or from any other lawful source.  Money in the public works assistance 

account shall be used ((to make loans and to give financial guarantees 

to local governments for public works projects.  Moneys in the account 

may also be appropriated to provide for state match requirements under 

federal law for projects and activities conducted and financed by the 

board under the drinking water assistance account)) for purposes as 

authorized by this chapter. 

(2) A minimum of eighty-five percent of the biennial capital budget 

appropriation to the public works board from this account shall be 

79



obligated for construction loans.  Not more than fifteen percent of 

the biennial capital budget appropriation to the public works board 

from this account may be ((expended or)) obligated for 

((preconstruction loans, emergency loans, or loans for capital 

facility planning under this chapter; of this amount, not more than 

ten percent of the biennial capital budget appropriation may be 

expended for emergency loans and not more than one percent of the 

biennial capital budget appropriation may be expended for capital 

facility planning loans)) programs other than construction loans.  

Within this fifteen percent, state match for federal programs or funds 

for other state programs may be obligated.  ((During the 2011-2013 

fiscal biennium, the legislature may transfer from the public works 

assistance account to the general fund, the water pollution control 

revolving account, and the drinking water assistance account such 

amounts as reflect the excess fund balance of the account.  During the 

2011-2013 fiscal biennium, the legislature may appropriate moneys from 

the account for economic development, innovation, and export grants, 

including brownfields; main street improvement grants; and the loan 

program consolidation board.)) 

Sec. 9.  RCW 43.155.070 and 2012 c 196 s 9 are each amended to 

read as follows: 

 (1) To qualify for ((loans or pledges)) financial assistance under 

this chapter the board must determine that a local government meets 

all of the following conditions: 

 (a) The city or county must be imposing a tax under chapter 82.46 

RCW at a rate of at least one-quarter of one percent; 

 (b) The local government must have developed a capital facility 

plan; and 

 (c) The local government must be using all local revenue sources 

which are reasonably available for funding public works, taking into 

consideration local employment and economic factors. 

 (2) Except where necessary to address a public health need or 

substantial environmental degradation, a county, city, or town 

planning under RCW 36.70A.040 ((must have)) may not receive financial 

80



assistance under this chapter unless it has adopted a comprehensive 

plan, including a capital facilities plan element, and development 

regulations as required by RCW 36.70A.040.  This subsection does not 

require any county, city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 to 

adopt a comprehensive plan or development regulations before 

requesting or receiving ((a loan or loan guarantee)) financial 

assistance under this chapter if such request is made before the 

expiration of the time periods specified in RCW 36.70A.040.  A county, 

city, or town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 which has not adopted a 

comprehensive plan and development regulations within the time periods 

specified in RCW 36.70A.040 is not prohibited from receiving ((a loan 

or loan guarantee)) financial assistance under this chapter if the 

comprehensive plan and development regulations are adopted as required 

by RCW 36.70A.040 before ((submitting a request for a loan or loan 

guarantee)) executing a contractual agreement for financial assistance 

with the board. 

 (3) In considering awarding ((loans)) financial assistance for 

public facilities to special districts requesting funding for a 

proposed facility located in a county, city, or town planning under 

RCW 36.70A.040, the board must consider whether the county, city, or 

town planning under RCW 36.70A.040 in whose planning jurisdiction the 

proposed facility is located has adopted a comprehensive plan and 

development regulations as required by RCW 36.70A.040. 

 (4) ((The board must develop a priority process for public works 

projects as provided in this section.  The intent of the priority 

process is to maximize the value of public works projects accomplished 

with assistance under this chapter.  The board must attempt to assure 

a geographical balance in assigning priorities to projects.  The board 

must consider at least the following factors in assigning a priority 

to a project: 

 (a) Whether the local government receiving assistance has 

experienced severe fiscal distress resulting from natural disaster or 

emergency public works needs; 

 (b) Except as otherwise conditioned by RCW 43.155.110, whether the 

entity receiving assistance is a Puget Sound partner, as defined in 

81



RCW 90.71.010; 

 (c) Whether the project is referenced in the action agenda 

developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310; 

 (d) Whether the project is critical in nature and would affect the 

health and safety of a great number of citizens; 

 (e) Whether the applicant's permitting process has been certified 

as streamlined by the office of regulatory assistance; 

 (f) Whether the applicant has developed and adhered to guidelines 

regarding its permitting process for those applying for development 

permits consistent with section 1(2), chapter 231, Laws of 2007; 

 (g) The cost of the project compared to the size of the local 

government and amount of loan money available; 

 (h) The number of communities served by or funding the project; 

 (i) Whether the project is located in an area of high 

unemployment, compared to the average state unemployment; 

 (j) Whether the project is the acquisition, expansion, 

improvement, or renovation by a local government of a public water 

system that is in violation of health and safety standards, including 

the cost of extending existing service to such a system; 

 (k) Except as otherwise conditioned by RCW 43.155.120, and 

effective one calendar year following the development of model 

evergreen community management plans and ordinances under RCW 

35.105.050, whether the entity receiving assistance has been 

recognized, and what gradation of recognition was received, in the 

evergreen community recognition program created in RCW 35.105.030; 

 (l) The relative benefit of the project to the community, 

considering the present level of economic activity in the community 

and the existing local capacity to increase local economic activity in 

communities that have low economic growth; and 

 (m) Other criteria that the board considers advisable. 

 (5) Existing debt or financial obligations of local governments 

may not be refinanced under this chapter.  Each local government 

applicant must provide documentation of attempts to secure additional 

local or other sources of funding for each public works project for 

which financial assistance is sought under this chapter. 

82



 (6))) Before November 1st of each ((even-numbered)) year, the 

board must develop and submit to the appropriate fiscal committees of 

the senate and house of representatives a ((description of the loans 

made under RCW 43.155.065, 43.155.068, and subsection (9) of this 

section during the preceding fiscal year and a prioritized)) list of 

qualified public works projects ((which are recommended for funding by 

the legislature, including one copy to the staff of each of the 

committees.  The list must include, but not be limited to, a 

description of each project and recommended financing, the terms and 

conditions of the loan or financial guarantee, the local government 

jurisdiction and unemployment rate, demonstration of the 

jurisdiction's critical need for the project and documentation of 

local funds being used to finance the public works project.  The list 

must also include measures of fiscal capacity for each jurisdiction 

recommended for financial assistance, compared to authorized limits 

and state averages, including local government sales taxes; real 

estate excise taxes; property taxes; and charges for or taxes on 

sewerage, water, garbage, and other utilities)) in traditional systems 

which have been evaluated by the board and are recommended for funding 

by the legislature. 

 (5) Before November 1st of each year, the board may develop and 

submit to the appropriate fiscal committees of the senate and house of 

representatives a list of qualified public works projects in 

nontraditional systems which have been evaluated by the board and are 

recommended for funding by the legislature. 

 (((7))) (6) The board may not sign contracts or otherwise 

financially obligate funds from the public works assistance account 

before the legislature has appropriated funds for a specific list of 

public works projects.  The legislature may remove projects from the 

list recommended by the board.  The legislature may not change the 

order of the priorities recommended for funding by the board. 

 (((8))) (7) Subsections (((7))) (4) and (5) of this section 

((does)) do not apply to ((loans made under RCW 43.155.065, 

43.155.068, and subsection (9) of this section. 

 (9) Loans made for the purpose of capital facilities plans are 

83



exempted from subsection (7) of this section. 

 (10) To qualify for loans or pledges for solid waste or recycling 

facilities under this chapter, a city or county must demonstrate that 

the solid waste or recycling facility is consistent with and necessary 

to implement the comprehensive solid waste management plan adopted by 

the city or county under chapter 70.95 RCW. 

 (11) After January 1, 2010, any project designed to address the 

effects of storm water or wastewater on Puget Sound may be funded 

under this section only if the project is not in conflict with the 

action agenda developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 

90.71.310)) financial assistance provided through the preconstruction, 

capital facilities planning, emergency, energy or water efficiency 

programs, water system acquisition and rehabilitation, or any other 

programs authorized by the legislature. 

(8) When awarding financial assistance, the board must consider: 

 (a) Whether the entity receiving assistance is a Puget Sound 

partner, as defined in RCW 90.71.010.  Entities that are not eligible 

to be a Puget Sound partner due to geographic location, composition, 

exclusion from the scope of the action agenda developed by the Puget 

Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310, or for any other reason, may 

not be given less preferential treatment than Puget Sound partners; 

and 

 (b) Whether the project is referenced in the action agenda 

developed by the Puget Sound partnership under RCW 90.71.310. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 10.  A new section is added to chapter 43.155 

RCW to read as follows: 

 The intent of the project selection process is to promote state 

policy objectives as identified in this chapter and to maximize the 

value of projects financed under this chapter.  Some or all of the 

following criteria in any order may be used by the board to prioritize 

projects for recommendation for funding by the legislature: 

 (1) Achieving balanced distribution of funds by geography, system 

type, and jurisdiction type; 

84



 (2) Whether the project would affect the health and safety of a 

large percentage of the affected community's population; 

 (3) Whether the project consolidates or regionalizes systems; 

 (4) Whether the project is located in an area of high 

unemployment, compared to the average state unemployment; 

 (5) Whether the system is being well-managed in the present and 

for long-term sustainability; 

 (6) Whether the project promotes the sustainable use of resources 

and environmental quality; and 

 (7) Other criteria that the board considers necessary to achieve 

the purposes of this chapter. 

NEW SECTION.  Sec. 11.  The following acts or parts of acts are 

each repealed: 

 (1) RCW 43.155.040 (General powers of the board) and 1985 c 446 s 

10; 

 (2) RCW 43.155.060 (Public works financing powers--Competitive 

bids on projects) and 1988 c 93 s 2 & 1985 c 446 s 11; 

 (3) RCW 43.155.065 (Emergency public works projects) and 2001 c 

131 s 3, 1990 c 133 s 7, & 1988 c 93 s 1; 

 (4) RCW 43.155.068 (Loans for preconstruction activities) and 2001 

c 131 s 4 & 1995 c 363 s 2; 

 (5) RCW 43.155.075 (Loans for public works projects--Statement of 

environmental benefits--Development of outcome-focused performance 

measures) and 2001 c 227 s 10; 

 (6) RCW 43.155.110 (Puget Sound partners) and 2007 c 341 s 25; and 

 (7) RCW 43.155.120 (Administering funds--Preference to an 

evergreen community) and 2008 c 299 s 30. 

 

85



 

86



TAB 6 

Program Development/ 

Implementation Updates 

81



 

82



 
DATE:  October 18, 2012 

TO:  Public Works Board  

FROM:  Chris Gagnon, Infrastructure Financing Specialist 

SUBJECT: Update on 2012 Capital Budget – Direct Appropriation Projects 

 
 
BACKGROUND 
The 2012 Capital Budget appropriated funds for Public Works Board and Commerce staff to administer.  
The funding was directly appropriated to projects categorized as CERB-like, Main Street Improvements, 
Port and Export Related Infrastructure, and Innovation Partnership Zone Facilities and Infrastructure.  
Legislation was signed into law on April 23, 2012. 
 
The Board may allocate up to 25% of the amounts for specified projects to other specified projects or 
to competitive grants if the cost of the projects is less than originally assumed or other non-state 
funds become available.  If specified projects have not met requirements for executing a contract by 
April 2013, the Board may allocate that amount to competitive grants. 
 

Client Project Amount 05-05 Status* 
Contract 
Executed 

CERB         
City of Burien NE Redevelopment Area_Storm Water Facilities  $                3,500,000  Sent 5/17/12 9/5/12 
City of Camas Infrastructure for NW Friberg Development  $                3,000,000  Complete 8/27/12 
Clark County Chelatchee Prairie RR Project  $                   500,000  Sent 5/17/12 8/27/12 
East Lewis County PDA Trans Alta Industrial Park  $                   998,000  Sent 5/17/12 10/9/12 
Edmonds Commu. College WA Aerospace  $                1,500,000  Complete 9/5/12 
Lakehaven Utility District Lakehaven UD/Federal Way Sewer Line  $                1,000,000  Sent 5/17/12 9/20/12 
Port of Quincy Port of Quincy Industrial Park #6 Infrastructure  $                1,100,000  Complete 8/27/12 
City of Renton Renton Aerospace Center  $                2,500,000  Sent 5/17/12 9/15/12 
City of Vancouver Vancouver Waterfront Park Development  $                1,000,000  Sent 5/17/12 8/20/12 
Grays Harbor PDA Satsop  $                4,000,000  Sent 5/17/12 PENDING 

OTHER         
City of Connell Klindworth Water Main  $                   540,000  Complete 8/7/12 

MAIN STREET         
City of Brier Scriber Creek Project  $                   800,000  In Process 10/8/12 
City of Edmonds Edmonds Main Street Project  $                   500,000  Complete 10/8/12 
City of Everett Everett Parks Roofs  $                   400,000  Sent 5/17/12 10/9/12 
City of Gig Harbor Cushman Phase 4  $                1,200,000  Sent 5/17/12 9/18/12 
City of Kirkland Bridge Design_Acquisition Cross Kirkland Corridor  $                2,000,000  Sent 5/17/12 PENDING 
City of La Conner La Conner Boardwalk  $                   750,000  Complete 9/18/12 
City of Longview Downtown Longview Corridor Project  $                   500,000  Sent 5/17/12 9/6/12 
City of Port Orchard Bay Street Pedestrian Path  $                   500,000  Complete 9/18/12 
City of Tacoma Pacific Avenue Streetscape Improvements  $                3,000,000  Complete PENDING 
City of Spokane Kendall Yards Public Infrastructure  $                2,000,000  In Process PENDING 
City of Spokane University District Pedestrian Bike  $                3,200,000  Sent 5/17/12 PENDING 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

November 2, 2012 
Board meeting  

83



 

PORTS Project Amount 05-05 Status* 
Contract 
Executed 

City of Tacoma Puyallup River Bridge Replacement  $                7,000,000  Complete 8/30/12 
Port of Benton Railroad Bridge Replacement  $                2,200,000  In Process 9/18/12 
Port of Camas-Washougal Steigerwald Commerce Center Development  $                1,500,000  In Process 8/9/12 
Port of Columbia Blue Mountain Station Site  $                   750,000  Complete 9/19/12 
Port of Pasco Heritage Industrial Rail Extension  $                1,800,000  Complete 8/16/12 
Port of Pasco Rail Hub Development - Phase 5  $                1,400,000  Complete 8/20/12 
Port of Skamania Access Road  $                   650,000  Complete 7/25/12 
Port of Skamania Water & Wastewater System  $                   350,000  In Process 9/11/12 
Port of Tacoma South Lead Rail  $                5,000,000  In Process PENDING 
Port of Vancouver Centennial Industrial Park Infrastructure  $                5,750,000  In Process 9/18/12 
Port of Walla Walla Infrastructure for Warehouse Project  $                2,750,000  In Process PENDING 
WSDOT Speed Improvements for Short Line Rail  $                4,000,000  EXEMPT 8/7/12 

IPZ         
City of Bothell Bothell IPZ / MedTech Discovery Center  $                   500,000  Sent 5/24/12 PENDING 
Port of Grays Harbor GH IPZ / Phase II Dev of R&D Fac/Incubator  $                   750,000  Sent 5/24/12 PENDING 
City of Richland Tri-cities IPZ / Wine Science Center  $                5,000,000  Sent 5/24/12 PENDING 
UW Tacoma Tacoma IPZ / Center for Urban Waters  $                2,800,000  Sent 5/24/12 PENDING 
WSU-Puyallup Tacoma IPZ / Clean Water Tech Aquatic Lab  $                   800,000  Sent 5/24/12 PENDING 
Walla Walla Comm College WW IPZ / Alternate Energy-Training & Innovation  $                3,670,000  Sent 5/24/12 8/14/12 

 

84



TAB 7 

Information and 

Other Items 

85



 

86


	1.d 121005 PWB Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING NOTES

	1.e October 11 Special Meeting Minutes.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS BOARD SPECIAL MEETING NOTES

	3.a Bainbridge Island PreCon term conversion request.pdf
	In February 1998 the Public Works Board (Board) adopted a policy allowing pre-construction loan borrowers to petition to have their pre-construction loan term converted from five (5) years to twenty (20) years if full construction funding for the proj...
	REQUEST:
	The City of Bainbridge Island executed a Pre-Construction loan for $425,000 with the Board on          November 24, 2008.
	Currently, the City of Bainbridge Island has $280,000 remaining contract balance to request.
	The City of Bainbridge Island has made one payment as of July 1, 2012:
	 July 1, 2012:  $ 72,759.79    ($72,500.00 principal; $259.79 interest)
	On April 23, 2012, the legislature approved the Capital Budget for the Public Works Assistance Account Loan List, which included this project and secured 100% funding for this project’s construction element.
	The City of Bainbridge Island requests an exception to the existing loan term policy and allow for conversion of the loan term to twenty (20) years.
	Extending the loan term to 20 years will:
	 Reduce principal payments to $22,031.25 for 16 years.
	 Increase the total interest paid to the Public Works Assistance Account  from $1,555.62 to $14,774.37.

	4.bi Energy & Water Memo for Board Mtg..pdf
	UBackground InformationU:  The Public Works Board received 12 energy & water efficiency loan applications for a total request of $5,605,966.  The Board has $4,850,000 to distribute for this program.
	Initially, the program was oversubscribed by $755,966.  The rating and ranking team met once to determine their methodology on how they were going to score the application criteria in an equitable and consistent manner.  The team met a second time to ...
	During the ranking of the applications, the City of Tukwila decided to withdraw their $1,000,000 loan request. Tukwila had previously been awarded an energy grant from the Dept. of Commerce, a loan from the Public Works Board energy program, for the s...
	Due to Tukwila’s withdrawal, the remaining eleven (11) applications were able to be funded.  In addition, there is still $244,034 left in the program.
	URequeUst:  Approval of the eleven energy/water efficiency loans and an additional six months to work with the existing applicants that may have cost overruns and need the unspent money.

	4.bi Energy & Water Memo for Board Mtg..pdf
	UBackground InformationU:  The Public Works Board received 12 energy & water efficiency loan applications for a total request of $5,605,966.  The Board has $4,850,000 to distribute for this program.
	Initially, the program was oversubscribed by $755,966.  The rating and ranking team met once to determine their methodology on how they were going to score the application criteria in an equitable and consistent manner.  The team met a second time to ...
	During the ranking of the applications, the City of Tukwila decided to withdraw their $1,000,000 loan request. Tukwila had previously been awarded an energy grant from the Dept. of Commerce, a loan from the Public Works Board energy program, for the s...
	Due to Tukwila’s withdrawal, the remaining eleven (11) applications were able to be funded.  In addition, there is still $244,034 left in the program.
	URequeUst:  Approval of the eleven energy/water efficiency loans and an additional six months to work with the existing applicants that may have cost overruns and need the unspent money.

	4.bi Energy & Water Memo for Board Mtg..pdf
	UBackground InformationU:  The Public Works Board received 12 energy & water efficiency loan applications for a total request of $5,605,966.  The Board has $4,850,000 to distribute for this program.
	Initially, the program was oversubscribed by $755,966.  The rating and ranking team met once to determine their methodology on how they were going to score the application criteria in an equitable and consistent manner.  The team met a second time to ...
	During the ranking of the applications, the City of Tukwila decided to withdraw their $1,000,000 loan request. Tukwila had previously been awarded an energy grant from the Dept. of Commerce, a loan from the Public Works Board energy program, for the s...
	Due to Tukwila’s withdrawal, the remaining eleven (11) applications were able to be funded.  In addition, there is still $244,034 left in the program.
	URequeUst:  Approval of the eleven energy/water efficiency loans and an additional six months to work with the existing applicants that may have cost overruns and need the unspent money.

	4.c 2013 Preconstruction  Final Recommentations to PWB 10-22.pdf
	FROM:  Terry Dale, Client Services Representative

	6.a Board Memo - Direct Appropriations.pdf
	FROM:  Chris Gagnon, Infrastructure Financing Specialist
	SUBJECT: Update on 2012 Capital Budget – Direct Appropriation Projects

	2.ci 11-2-2012 PPD Committee Agenda.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS BOARD
	Draft Agenda

	2.cii 2012-10-04 PPD meeting notes draft.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS BOARD
	Meeting Notes

	1.d 121005 PWB Meeting Minutes DRAFT.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING NOTES




